NORTHERN

Public Health

Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board
Meeting Notice and Agenda

Thursday, November 6, 2025

9:00 a.m.

Members
Kate Thomas (Chair) — Interim County Dr. Nicholas Von Foerster - Emergency
Manager, Washoe County Room Physician
Jackie Bryant (Vice-Chair) — City Chad Kingsley - District Health Officer,
Manager, City of Reno Northern Nevada Public Health
Dion Louthan - City Manager, City of Joe Macaluso - Vice President of Risk
Sparks Management, Renown

This meeting will be held virtually only.

This meeting will be accessible via ZOOM webinar. To attend via ZOOM, click this link:
https://washoecounty-gov.zoom.us/j/97584918712

Or

Type https://zoom.us/ in your computer browser, click “Join a Meeting” on the ZOOM
website, and enter this Meeting ID: 975 8491 8712. NOTE: This option will require a
computer with audio and video capabilities.

Alternatively, you can join the meeting by telephone by dialing 1-669-444-9171, entering the
Meeting ID: 975 8491 8712 and pressing #.


https://washoecounty-gov.zoom.us/j/97584918712
https://zoom.us/

NORTHER

Public Health

1.

*Roll Call and Determination of Qquorum

*Public Comment

Action may not be taken on any matter raised during this public comment period
unless the matter is specifically listed on an agenda as an action item. All public
comment is limited to three minutes per person. Members of the public may submit
public comment by attending the meeting via Zoom. Please log into the Zoom
meeting via the above link and utilize the “Raise Hand” feature during any public
comment period.

Other requests for public comment must be submitted to almiller@nnph.org no
later than 4:00pm on the day before the scheduled meeting. Reasonable efforts will
be made to hear all public comment during the meeting.

Consent Items (For Possible Action)
Matters which the Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board may consider in one
motion. Any exceptions to the Consent Agenda must be stated prior to approval.
A. Approval of Draft Minutes
August 7, 2025

*Discussion and Acknowledgment of Resignation —Joe Macaluso, Continuous
Quality Improvement (CQI) Representative.
Andrea Esp

*Recognize the week of November 17 - 21, 2025 as Crash Responder Safety
Week.
Andrea Esp

Presentation, discussion, and possible approval for distribution of the Washoe
County Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Oversight Program FY25 Annual
Report. (For Possible Action)

Andrea Esp

*EMS Oversight Program and Performance Data Updates - Joint Advisory
Committee Activities, Special Projects, EMS Planning, Data Performance, REMSA
Health Franchise Agreement Updates, REMSA Health Exemption Requests,
Community Services Department Reviews, Mass Gatherings and Special Events
Reviews.

Andrea Esp

Page 2 of 5

November 6, 2025 - Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board Meeting Agenda






NORTHERN

Public Health

Data Performance Report, EMS Operations Report

14.*Board Comment
Limited to announcements or issues for future agendas. No action may be taken.

15. *Public Comment
Limited to three (3) minutes per person. No action may be taken.

Adjournment

Possible Changes to Agenda Order and Timing: Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, combined
with other items, withdrawn from the agenda, moved to the agenda of another later meeting; or they may be
voted on in a block. Items with a specific time designation will not be heard prior to the stated time, but may
be heard later. Anitem listed with asterisk (*) next to it is an item for which no action will be taken.

Special Accommodations: The Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board meetings are accessible to the
disabled. Disabled members of the public who require special accommodations or assistance at the
meeting are requested to notify the EMS Program in writing at the Northern Nevada Public Health, 1001 E. 9*"
St, Reno, NV 89512, or by calling 775-326-6049, at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.

Public Comment: During the “Public Comment” items, anyone may speak pertaining to any matter
either on or off the agenda, to include items to be heard on consent, by filling out a “Request to
Speak” form and/or submit comments for the record to the Recording Secretary. For the remainder
of the agenda, public comment will only be heard during items that are marked FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION. All public comment should be addressed to the Board of Health and notanindividual
member. The Board asks thatyourcomments are expressedinacourteous manner. Any public
comment for hearing items will be heard before action is taken on the item and must be about the
specific item being considered by the Board. Public comment and presentations for individual
agenda items are limited as follows: fifteen minutes each for staff and applicant presentations, five
minutes foraspeakerrepresenting agroup, and three minutes for individual speakers unless
extended by questions from the Board or by action of the Chair. Reasonable efforts will be made to
hear all public comment during the meeting.

All public comment is limited to three minutes per person. Unused time may not be reserved by the speaker
nor allocated to another person.

Members of the public that wish to attend via Zoom may make public comment by submitting an email
comment to almiller@nnph.org before the scheduled meeting, which includes the name of the commenter
and the agenda item number for which the comment is submitted.

Page 4 of 5
November 6, 2025 - Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board Meeting Agenda


mailto:almiller@nnph.org

NORTHERN

Public Health

Response to Public Comment: The Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board can deliberate or take
action only if a matter has been listed on an agenda properly posted prior to the meeting. During the public
comment period, speakers may address matters listed or not listed on the published agenda. The Open
Meeting Law does not expressly prohibit responses to public comments by the Emergency Medical Services
Advisory Board. However, responses from the Board members to unlisted public comment topics could
become deliberation on a matter without notice to the public. On the advice of legal counsel and to ensure
the public has notice of all matters the Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board will consider, Board
members may choose not to respond to public comments, except to correct factual inaccuracies, ask for
Northern Nevada Public Health staff action or to ask that a matter be listed on a future agenda. The
Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board may do this either during the public comment item or during the
following item: “Board Comments - Limited to announcements or issues for future agendas.”

Posting of Agenda; Location of Website:

Pursuant to NRS 241.020, Notice of this meeting was posted at the following locations:
Washoe County Administration Complex, 1001 E. 9th St., Reno, NV 89512

Northern Nevada Public Health Website https://www.nnph.org

State of Nevada Website: https://notice.nv.gov

How to Get Copies of Agenda and Support Materials: Supporting materials are available to the public at
Northern Nevada Public Health located at 1001 E. 9th St., Building B, Reno, NV 89512 and on the Northern
Nevada Public Health website www.nnph.org pursuant to the requirements of NRS 241.020. Ms. April Miller,
Sr. Office Specialist to the Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board, is the person designated by the
Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board to respond to requests for supporting materials. Ms. Miller may
be reached by telephone at (775) 326-6049, or by email at almiller@nnph.org.

Page 5 of 5
November 6, 2025 - Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board Meeting Agenda


https://www.nnph.org/
https://notice.nv.gov/
http://www.nnph.org/

[tem 3-A.

NORTHERN

Public Health

Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board
Meeting Minutes

Thursday, August 7, 2025

9:00 a.m.

Members
Kate Thomas (Chair) — Interim County Dr. Nicholas Von Foerster — Emergency
Manager, Washoe County Room Physician
Jackie Bryant (Vice-Chair) — City Manager, Chad Kingsley — District Health Officer,
City of Reno Northern Nevada Public Health
Dion Louthan - City Manager, City of Sparks Joe Macaluso - Vice President of Risk

Management, Renown

This meeting was held virtually via Zoom.

*Roll Call and Determination of Quorum
Vice-Chair Hodge called the meeting to order at 9:00 am.
The following members and staff were present:

Members present: JW Hodge, representing Jackie Bryant
Erin Dixon, representing Chad Kingsley
Joe Macaluso
Dr. Von Foerster

Ms. Zaski verified that a quorum was present.

Staff present: Dania Reid
Dr. Nancy Diao
Andrea Esp
Kesley Zaski
Anastasia Gunawan



NORTHER

Public Health

2.

*Public Comment
Limited to three (3) minutes per person. No action may be taken.

Vice-Chair Hodge opened the public comment period. As there were no public comments, Vice-
Chair Hodge closed the public comment period.

Consent Items (For Possible Action)
Matters which the Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board may consider in one motion.
Any exceptions to the Consent Agenda must be stated prior to approval.

Approval of Draft Minutes
May 29, 2025

Mr. Macaluso moved to approve the draft minutes. Dr. Von Foerster seconded the motion, which
passed unanimously.

*District Board of Health approval of the appointment of Nicholas Von Foerster to the
Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board (EMSAB) for the Emergency Room Physician
Representative for a three (3) year term beginning on July 24, 2025 and ending July 23, 2028.
Andrea Esp

Ms. Esp reported that the District Board of Health appointed Dr. Nicholas Von Foerster as the
new ER Physician Representative for EMSAB at the July meeting. The previous EMSAB meeting
approved a revision to the bylaws that no longer required the ER Physician to be a
representative of PMAC. Ms. Esp provided an introduction of Dr. Von Foerster.

Dr. Von Foerster thanked the board for the appointment and expressed his gratitude. Dr. Von
Foerster reported that he is currently an ER Physician with Northern Nevada, an EMS Physician,
and a Medical Director with Reno Fire. He noted that with his experience from the line crews in
the field, follow through with continuity of care in the ER, and his role as Medical Director with
Reno Fire, he looks forward to bringing valuable perspectives to the EMSAB.

JW Hodge expressed his gratitude to Dr. Von Foerster for joining the team and looks forward to
his contributions.

Page 2 of 6
August 7, 2025 — Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board Meeting Minutes



NORTHER

Public Health

5. Discussion and Possible Action to Establish a Workgroup to Explore Development of an EMS
Licensure and Permitting Program in Coordination with Northern Nevada Public Health
(NNPH), Pursuant to Assembly Bill 102 (2025), Which Authorizes District Boards of Health in
Counties with Populations of 100,000 or More to Establish, Manage, and Coordinate Local
Oversight of EMS in Mid-Sized Counties, Including Washoe County; the Board May Also
Identify Entities to Be Represented on the Workgroup.

The Workgroup Shall Include, at a Minimum, Invitations to Participate Extended to:
e One or more consumer representatives
e EMS agencies currently licensed to operate in Washoe County
e One representative from each jurisdiction within Washoe County (i.e., City of
Reno, City of Sparks, and Washoe County)
Participation in the Workgroup is Voluntary; Identified Entities Shall Be Invited but Not
Required to Participate. (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION)
Chad Kingsley

Ms. Erin Dixon, representing Chad Kingsley

The discussion focused on Assembly Bill 102, which allows Northern Nevada Public Health to
coordinate local oversight for populations over 100,000. This shift from state to local control
could bring significant changes and associated costs. To evaluate the impact and gather
community input, a small work group was proposed. The group would review the details and
make recommendations. At minimum, it was suggested the work group include invitations to all
consumer representatives, all EMS agencies licensed in Washoe County (not limited to 911
systems), and representatives from the City of Reno, City of Sparks, and Washoe County.

The board discussed whether to establish a working group to evaluate the impacts of Assembly
Bill 102. Mr. Hodge supported the idea, emphasizing the need for a clearly defined scope to
keep the group focused, with Mr. Macaluso agreeing. Dr. Von Foerster agreed, opining that the
bill could significantly affect EMS authority and regional hierarchy. Overall, there was consensus
in favor of forming the work group, with agreement on the importance of setting clear
intentions and parameters. Ms. Esp stated that the EMS Program has already begun preliminary
research on possible program structures and fee models. The board discussed who will
establish guidelines and framework of the workgroup. It was noted that the workgroup would
evaluate the want and need for NNPH to oversee the licensing requirements, making a
recommendation to EMSAB and subsequently to District Board of Health.

Mr. Hodge recommended the motion for the formation of the working group based on the
direction of AB102, to include one consumer, one representative from every licensed EMS
agency, one representative from each jurisdiction, one representative from the EMS Advisory
Board which does not include a NNPH staff member, with possible inclusion of Dr. Von Foerster.

Page 3 of 6
August 7, 2025 — Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board Meeting Minutes



NORTHER

Public Health

A charter or outline should be included to identify scope of work, inclusion of goals, and a
timeline.

Mr. Macaluso approved the motion. Dr. Von Foerster seconded the motion, which passed
unanimously.

Washoe County legal, Ms. Reid, will evaluate the formation of the working group and advise if it
should comply with open meeting law.

6.*EMS Oversight Program and Performance Data Updates — Joint Advisory Committee Activities,
Special Projects, EMS Planning, Data Performance, REMSA Health Franchise Agreement
Updates, REMSA Health Exemption Requests, Community Services Department Reviews, Mass
Gatherings and Special Events Reviews.
Andrea Esp

Ms. Esp reported that the program has been working with the JAC to determine how to
measure performance in the region outside of response time only. Research is being conducted
on different metrics whether that is possibly patient outcomes or adherence to protocols.

Dr. Von Foerster stated that there is a physician statement from the National Association of EMS
Physicians specifically regarding recommendations for performance evaluation outside of just
response times, noting there may be some beneficial data already nationally recommended that
is available for the JAC discussions.

Mr. Hodge recommended an agenda item and presentation of the recommendations included in
the aforementioned article at the next board meeting.

7.*Agency Reports and Updates

A. *REMSA Health EMSAB Report, Adam Heinz
Data Performance Report, EMS Operations Report

Mr. Adam Heinz presented REMSA Health’s report and extended a welcome to Dr.
Von Foerster. Mr. Heinz noted that REMSA Health internally measures, tracks, and
benchmarks about 85% of what is recommended in the article that Dr. Von Foerster
cited earlier in the meeting.

Page 4 of 6
August 7, 2025 — Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board Meeting Minutes



NORTHER

Public Health

B.

*City of Sparks Fire Department EMSAB Report, Chief Jeff Sullivan
Data Performance Report, EMS Operations Report

Chief Jeff Sullivan presented the EMS Operations Report and highlighted that it has
been just over a year since entering into a partnership with REMSA Health for the
ambulance in Wingfield Springs and has surpassed 1000 transports since June, with
positive feedback. Five fire recruits have graduated and there are three paramedics
attending paramedic school, being sponsored by an AFG grant.

*Truckee Meadows Fire and Rescue EMSAB Report, Chief Joe Kammann
Data Performance Report, EMS Operations Report

Chief Joe Kammann presented the EMS Operations Report. Standard training
operations continue over the last several months and they received video
laryngoscopes that has allowed expansion of their QA program by performing chart
reviews with the ability to record on airway. TMFR is working on additional QA
processes with Renown and Northern Nevada on continuity of care of trauma
services. Gearing up for wildland fire season, multiple apparatus’ have been sent out
to different states for assistance. Richard Edwards was hired as new Fire Chief last
month. He comes from the Stockton area and has been busy making his
introductions amongst the community.

*Reno Fire Department EMSAB Report, Chief Cindy Green
Data Performance Report, EMS Operations Report

Chief Cindy Green presented the EMS Operations Report and welcomed any
questions.

8. *Board Comment

Limited to announcements or issues for future agendas. No action may be taken.

No board comment at this time.

Page 5 of 6

August 7, 2025 — Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board Meeting Minutes



NORTHERN

Public Health

9. *Public Comment
Limited to three (3) minutes per person. No action may be taken.

Vice-Chair Hodge opened the public comment period.

As there was no one wishing to speak, Vice-Chair Hodge closed the public comment period.

Adjournment

Vice-Chair Hodge adjourned the meeting at 9:29 a.m.

Page 6 of 6
August 7, 2025 — Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board Meeting Minutes



NORTHERN AGENDA PACKETNO. 4

Public Health

Serving Reno, Sparks & Washoe County

Staff Report
Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board
Board Meeting Date: November 6, 2025

DATE: October 29, 2025
TO: Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board
FROM: Andrea Esp, Preparedness and EMS Program Manager

775-326-6042, aesp@nnph.org

SUBJECT: Discussion and Acknowledgment of Resignation — Joe Macaluso, Continuous
Quality Improvement (CQI) Representative.

SUMMARY

The Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board (EMSAB) is comprised of six positions, two of which are
appointed by the District Board of Health (DBOH). This report provides notification of the resignation of the
Hospital Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI) Representative, Joe Macaluso, and outlines next steps to fill
the vacancy.

PREVIOUS ACTION

Joe Macaluso was initially appointed as the EMSAB Hospital CQI Representative in October 2018, with his
first meeting occurring in February 2019. His initial appointment term was for four (4) years. Mr. Macaluso
was reappointed to a subsequent two (2) year term beginning November 2, 2023.

BACKGROUND

According to the EMSAB bylaws, the Hospital CQI Representative serves a two (2) year term and may be
reappointed twice. Mr. Macaluso’s contributions since 2019 have been instrumental in supporting continuous
quality improvement initiatives across the regional EMS system. His leadership has strengthened collaboration
among partner agencies and advanced data-driven performance improvement efforts.

With his resignation, the Hospital CQI Representative position is now vacant. In accordance with the EMSAB
bylaws, the position will remain open until a successor is appointed and qualified. The EMS Oversight Program
will post the position in compliance with Washoe County policy and bring forward a recommendation to the
District Board of Health for appointment at a future meeting.

FISCAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact.
RECOMMENDATION
There is no recommendation.
POSSIBLE MOTION

Not applicable
ATTACHMENTS



mailto:aesp@nnph.org

Subject: Discussion and Acknowledgment of Resignation — Joe Macaluso, Continuous Quality ImprovemeN.’ﬁ5
PH

Representative
Date: November 6, 2025
Page: 2 of 2

e EMSAB 11-6-2025 - Position Resignation-Joe Macaluso



Iltem 4-A.

From: Joe Macaluso

To: Esp, Andrea

Cc: Miller, April

Subject: EMSAB Position Resignation

Date: Tuesday, October 14, 2025 9:09:13 AM

This Message Is From an External Sender
This message came from outside of Washoe County -- DO NOT CLICK on links or open attachments unless
you are sure the content is safe.

Report Suspicious

Ms. Esp.

Please consider this as notification of my intent to resign my position as Hospital Quality
Representative for the Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board (EMSAB). | am happy to serve out
the remainder of my term and any additional time needed until a suitable replacement is identified.

| have enjoyed my time serving in this role and appreciate the opportunity. Thank you.

Joe Macaluso, JD, RN, CPHRM

Renown Health Vice President of Risk Management
1155 Mill Street Reno, NV 89502

P: (775) 982-4798

F: (775) 982-4797

joe.macaluso@renown.org

Confidentiality Notice: This e-mail message and any attachments are for the sole use of the intended
recipient and may contain proprietary, confidential, trade secret or privileged information. Any unauthorized
review, use, disclosure, or distribution is prohibited and may be a violation of law. If you are not the
intended recipient or a person responsible for delivering this message to an intended recipient, please
contact the sender by reply e-mail and destroy all copies of the original message immediately.


https://us-phishalarm-ewt.proofpoint.com/EWT/v1/KDQzAAmjlQ!4u4TWcXXtnXShHdM5ezOP0Z5WQEoRM5ULIIaHDyOmZipfJvmq7zB0H6s39QzLEYufZ8L4Lc0UcBTa-VGpESg7J-_H-q7sOYiZ_g-r3vci6dBJyiHu-wEyOZQ5NsKJZ4to4xyRQY$
mailto:Joe.Macaluso@renown.org
mailto:AEsp@nnph.org
mailto:ALMiller@nnph.org
mailto:joe.macaluso@renown.org

NORTHERN N

Public Health

Serving Reno, Sparks & Washoe County

WHEREAS, law enforcement officers, firefighters, emergency medical personnel, road maintenance
crews, public service utility workers, and tow operators place themselves in danger every time they work
within inches of vehicles traveling at highway speeds to conduct valuable, life-saving operations in
adverse weather conditions; and

WHEREAS, it is imperative that we promote safer incident scenes through public education and
awareness to protect all responders as they courageously work to clear incidents,; and

WHEREAS, Crash Responder Safety Week (CRSW) serves as an opportunity for the Department of
Public Safety — Nevada Highway Patrol Division (DPS-NHP), the Nevada Department of Transportation
(NDOT), and other first responder agencies to participate in coordinated efforts to educate the public and
bring awareness to first responder safety, and to promote effective Traffic Incident Management strategies
and training for first responders; and

WHEREAS, the Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board (EMSAB) reminds drivers of the “Move
Over” law (NRS 484B.607) which states, “if possible, drive in a lane that is not adjacent to the lane
where the traffic incident is located, unless roadway, traffic, weather, or other conditions make doing so
unsafe or impossible”; and

WHEREAS, According to the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration, less than 30% of
Americans are aware of move-over laws, and fail to abide by them,; and

WHEREAS, NNPH is committed to effective traffic incident response and management through
collaboration and training, which reduces the duration and impacts of traffic incidents and improves the
safety of motorists, crash victims, and emergency responders, and

WHEREAS, Over 1,500 first responders have participated in the Nevada Traffic Incident Management
Coalition efforts throughout the state since 2014, and 79% of all first responders in Nevada have received
Traffic Incident Management training, and

WHEREAS, during Crash Responder Safety Week, the NNPH remembers and honors those national first
responders who lost their lives in 2024.: 26 Law Enforcement, 3 Fire/EMS, 12 Tow Operators, 1 Road
Service Technician, and 4 DOT/SSP, for a total of 45 first responders.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved, that the Northern Nevada Emergency Medical Services Advisory
Board does hereby recognize the week of November 17-21, 2025, as

Crash Responder Safety Week

Recognized this 6™ day of November 2025.



NORTHERN AGENDA PACKET NO. ftem 6

Public Health

Serving Reno, Sparks & Washoe County

STAFF REPORT
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES ADVISORY BOARD
MEETING DATE: November 6, 2025

DATE: October 10, 2025
TO: EMS Advisory Board Members
FROM: Andrea Esp, Preparedness and EMS Program Manager

775-326-6042, aesp@nnph.org

SUBJECT: Presentation, discussion, and possible approval for distribution of the Washoe County
Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report (For Possible
Action).

SUMMARY

The EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report serves as an educational and informational resource
highlighting the work performed, achievements, and performance data for the signatories of the ILA as
it relates to Emergency Medical Services (EMS). This report contains performance data for signatory
agencies of the Interlocal Agreement.

PREVIOUS ACTION

The previous EMS Program Annual Report for FY24 was presented to and approved by the EMS Advisory
Board on February 20, 2025.

The previous EMS Program Annual Report for FY23 was presented to and approved by the EMS Advisory
Board on February 1, 2024.

The previous EMS Program Annual Report for FY22 was presented to, and approved by, the EMS Advisory
Board on November 29, 2022.

The previous EMS Program Annual Report for FY20 and FY21 was presented to and approved by the EMS
Advisory Board on February 3, 2022.

The previous EMS Program Annual Report for FY 19 was presented to and approved by the EMS Advisory
Board on November 7, 2019.

The previous EMS Program Annual Report for FY'18 was presented to, and approved by, the EMS Advisory
Board on February 7, 2019.

The previous EMS Program Annual Report for FY17 was presented to and approved by the EMS Advisory
Board on October 5, 2017.

The previous EMS Program Annual Report for FY 16 was presented to and approved by the EMS Advisory
Board on October 6, 2016.


mailto:aesp@nnph.org

Subject: Presentation, discussion, and possible approval for distribution of the Washoe County

Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Program FY25 Annual Report (For Possible Action). N Np H
Date: November 6, 2025 -

Page: 2 of 2

The previous EMS Program Annual Report for FY215 was presented to and approved by the EMS Advisory
Board on October 23, 2015.

BACKGROUND

The Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Medical Services Oversight outlines the duties of the EMS
Oversight Program stating that “the Program shall provide oversight of all Emergency Medical Services
provided by RENO (City of Reno), SPARKS (City of Sparks), WASHOE (Washoe County), FIRE (Truckee
Meadows Fire Protection District) and REMSA and shall ... Provide a written Annual Report on the State of
Emergency Medical Services to RENO, SPARKS, WASHOE, FIRE, and REMSA covering the preceding
fiscal year, containing measured performance in each agency including both ground and rotary wing air
ambulance services provided by REMSA in Washoe County; the compliance with performance measures
established by the District Emergency Medical Services Oversight Program in each agency... ”.

The EMS Oversight Program FY24 Annual Report is intended to be an educational and informational resource
for our community to discuss EMS system performance more effectively. It serves as a document for the EMS
Advisory Board on the status of the EMS system and the achievements of all the partner agencies, which
meets the obligations of the Interlocal Agreement.

FISCAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends to accept the presentation and approve the distribution of the Washoe County EMS
Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report.

POSSIBLE MOTION

Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be “Move to accept the
presentation and approve the distribution of the Washoe County EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual
Report.”

ATTACHMENT

EMSAB - 11-6-2025 - EMS Oversight Program FY25 Report Final




NORTHERN NE

Public Health

Serving Reno, Sparks & Washoe County

EMS OVERSIGHT PROGRAM
FY25 ANNUAL REPORT

November 2025




NORTHERN NE

Public Health

Serving Reno, Sparks & Washoe County

MISSION

To improve and protect our community's quality of life and increase equitable
opportunities for better health.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

IMEFOTUCTION <.t 1
Washoe County’s 9-1-1 and EMS SYSTEM ...t 1
Washoe County EMS Partner AGQENCIES ..ottt 3
Partner Agency EMS Highlights & Accomplishments FY25 ... 7
City of Reno Fire Department’s EMS Program Highlights for FY25......oeeeeeeeeeeeee, 7
City of Sparks Fire Department’s EMS Program Highlights for FY25........coooeeeeceeee, 8
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District EMS Program Highlights for FY25......cccccevivininneeee. 9
REMSA Health's EMS Program Highlights for FY25 ..., 10
EMS Regional Performance ANALYSIS ... et e e ev s eas et se s ass s s sssensanaenns 16
JUNSAICEIONAL PerfOrMaNCe ...t 17
RENO FIre DEPAMMENT ...ttt ns st s sttt 19
SPArKS FIre DEPATMENT. ..ottt bbbt 23
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection DISTHCE. ... 25
About the Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program........cccceevveiececcsesee, 28
EMS Oversight Program Roles & Responsibilities ..., 28
Signatory Partner Roles & ReSPONSIDILLIES ...t 29
EMS Oversight Program Accomplishments FY25. ... et 30
TTAINING ANA EXEICISES .ttt sttt s st s st s ettt 30
EMS Strategic Plan (2023-2028) ...ttt st 31
Trauma Data and REPOMING ...ttt ee et es st s s eae s s s astensaesseseananananeans 33
MCI aNd MAEA PLAN UPAAEES ...ttt eea e es e en s es st eesasastenenasanennans 33
Community Services Development (CSD) Memo REVIEW ... 33
SPECIAL EVENTS .ttt 34

EMS Oversight Program Priorities FOr NeXt 4 YEAIS ...ttt 34



The EMS Oversight Program would like to extend their appreciation to the EMS Partners of
Washoe County for the quality emergency care they continue to deliver to the visitors and
residents of Washoe County and for contributing to this report by providing their agency’s

highlights and accomplishments for FY25.

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program
Andrea Esp, MPH, NVEM, CPH, CHES
Preparedness and EMS Oversight Program Manager

Anastasia Gunawan, MPH
EMS Statistician

Kelsey Zaski
Preparedness and EMS Oversight Program Office Specialist

April Miller
Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness Sr. Office Specialist



INTRODUCTION

The Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Oversight Program Annual Report contains a summary of
the Washoe County EMS system from July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2025 (FY2b). The report
contains multiple sections highlighting the EMS system within Washoe County, including how the
Washoe County 9-1-1 EMS system is set up, the EMS response agencies and their jurisdictional
boundaries, performance data, EMS partner activity highlights, the EMS Oversight Program’s FY25
accomplishments and goals for FY26.

Washoe County’'s 9-1-1 and EMS System

Washoe County has a two-tiered response system for emergency medical calls. A 9-1-1 call is
received at a Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP) where the call taker will then determine if the
person in need of services is requesting police, medical, or fire response. If the need for medical is
identified, the caller is transferred to the REMSA Health Communications Center for Emergency
Medical Dispatch (EMD).

The two-tiered system is designed so that a fire agency can be dispatched first to a medical
incident in their jurisdiction, since fire stations are located within neighborhoods throughout the
county. While fire is being dispatched, the caller is questioned by REMSA Health Communications
Center call takers through a structured EMD process to determine the call priority and dispatch

the closest ambulance.

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report



Figure 1 illustrates how a 9-1-1 call is transferred through the EMS system. Starting from the
initial call coming into the PSAP, to the call taker questioning the caller, dispatching of the Reno
Fire Department (RFD) or the Sparks Fire Department (SFD), transferring the 9-1-1 call to REMSA
Health, REMSA Health dispatching an ambulance or jurisdictional fire agency, EMS (Fire and
REMSA Health) responders arriving on scene, and, if warranted, transporting the patient to a

hospital.

Figure 1: 9-1-1 Call Routing in the REMSA Health Franchise Area*

Call is answered by one
of the regional PSAPs
(Reno, Sparks, or
Washoe)

The call taker asks
"police, fire, or
medical?"

The call taker records
phone number,
address and reason for
call

Medical call information
is sent to the fire
dispatcher and the
caller is transferred to
RESMA Health

The fire dispatcher
alarms the appropriate
fire station with known

call information

REMSA Health receives
transferred call and
gathers/verifies the

three required pieces of

information (address,
number, and situation)

REMSA Health
prioritizes the medical
emergency based on
information provided by
the caller

REMSA Health
dispatches the closest
appropriate available

ambulance

Fire department arrives
on scene

REMSA Health arrives
on scene

Patient is transported to
hospital via REMSA
Health or Fire agency

*See REMSA Health Franchise area map on page 6

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report



WASHOE COUNTY EMS PARTNER AGENCIES

The EMS system within Washoe County is comprised of multiple partner agencies. These
agencies work together daily to ensure the EMS needs of the community are met. The EMS partner

agencies include:

e City of Reno!

e (City of Reno Fire Department

e (City of Reno Public Safety Dispatch

e City of Sparks!?

o City of Sparks Fire Department

o City of Sparks Public Safety Answering Point
e Gerlach Volunteer Fire Department

e Mount Rose Ski Patrol

o North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District

e Pyramid Lake Fire Rescue

e Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority Fire Department (not part of Reno Fire Department)
e REMSA Health

e Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District!

e Washoe County?

e Northern Nevada Public Health?

e  Washoe County Sheriff Dispatch

e Washoe County Sheriff's Office

Emergency Medical Services in Washoe County are provided by the following career fire agencies:
City of Reno Fire Department (RFD), City of Sparks Fire Department (SFD), Truckee Meadows Fire
Protection District (TMFPD), North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District (NLTFPD), and Pyramid
Lake Fire Rescue (PLFR). As of July 1, 2024, SFD became a transporting agency. The City of Reno
and City of Sparks Fire Departments’ jurisdictions encompass the city limits of their respective
cities, while Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District’s jurisdiction encompasses unincorporated
Washoe County south of the Rural Fire Boundary (Figure 2). The southwest corner of Washoe
County falls under the jurisdiction of North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District (NLTFPD). NLTFPD
provides fire and ambulance coverage and transport for the residents of Incline Village, Crystal
Bay, and surrounding communities. The Mount Rose Ski Patrol was licensed as an advanced life
support (ALS) provider in March of 2018, granting them jurisdiction within the Mt. Rose Ski area.
Mt. Rose Ski Patrol is not a transport agency and works closely with regional partners for patient
transport. Pyramid Lake Fire Rescue serves Washoe County citizens north of the Rural Fire

Boundary. They respond to medical emergencies in the town of Empire and surrounding rural

! Signatory of the Inter Local Agreement for EMS Oversight.

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report



areas. Starting July 1, 2025, Royal Ambulance was contracted by Washoe County to EMS services
in Gerlach. The Red Rock Volunteer Fire Department serves a rural area north of Reno supported
by Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District. The private nonprofit ambulance company, REMSA
Health, is responsible for the transport of patients within the designated Franchise response area.
REMSA Health's response area extends from the southern border of Washoe County, north to the
border of the Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribal Lands, east to Wadsworth and west to the border of
California (Figure 3). The response zones will have response time compliance standards for all

presumptively defined life-threatening calls (Priority 1 calls) as follows:

Zone A - REMSA Health shall ensure that 90% of all presumptively defined life-threatening
calls (Priority 1 calls) have a response time of eight (8) minutes and fifty-nine (59) seconds or

less within the combined Zone A areas.

Zone B. C. and D - REMSA Health shall ensure that 90% of all presumptively defined life
threatening calls (Priority 1 calls) collectively have a response time of fifteen (15) minutes and

fifty-nine (59) seconds or less for the combined Zone B areas, twenty (20) minutes and fifty-nine
(59) seconds or less for the combined Zone C areas, and thirty (30) minutes and fifty-nine (59)
seconds or less for the combined Zone D areas.

Zone E - These response areas are considered wilderness/Frontier and REMSA Health shall
respond to calls in these areas, which may require extraordinary measures, as quickly as possible.

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report



Figure 2: Jurisdictional Boundaries and Fire Station Locations for Reno Fire Department (RENO),
Sparks Fire Department (SPARKS) and Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD)

California

T40

Carear Statinns
. RENO

. SPARKS
. THFPD

=) Weaston Courty
Fire Districts
Rena FO
L] spams 0
7777 Tnckee Meadaws PO

Lake Tatoe ...

FIRE STATIONS \recHmomaT

12/29/2023 0 ) | SERVICES

1 2 \a :
0 Miles N S

wogesitiworosace Mapl by Hea 1 F o Stsionyid incistons_FRO_20221004

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report



Figure 3: REMSA Health Franchise Response Map!

Washoe County REMSA Zones |

Effective July 1, 2024 S
& Xq
S,
)
%)
X
z') K
D YR %:
N\
w@/};- ;
=
' REMSA Health
. /(> Response Zone Map
5400y, /
55 b = [_]A
X s
l H c
( o
B e

South Reno Inset

3
L

’ ] | D
il A

\\wcgisdb\g$\workspace\jjohnson\HealthDept\EMS_CALL_MAPPING\Annual_REMSA_Calls_Review\FY2122_Review\FY2122_ Review.aprx; PVandenberg

S Mc©

S
a \,\63‘]\

S

The map is reviewed and updated annually, with the last update completed July 1, 2024.

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report



PARTNER AGENCY EMS HIGHLIGHTS & ACCOMPLISHMENTS FY25

Interlocal Agreement (ILA) EMS partner agencies prepared and provided their EMS related
highlights for FY25 (July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2025), which include accomplishments such
as trainings, certifications, committee accomplishments, services provided, and new programs
implemented.

City of Reno Fire Department’'s EMS Program Highlights for FY25

FIRE DEPT

Throughout FY25, the Reno Fire Department made significant advancements in EMS training,
equipment deployment, and clinical oversight. The department recertified providers in Basic Life
Support (BLS), Advanced Care Life Support (ACLS), Pediatric Advanced Life Support (PALS),
and Pre-hospital Trauma Life Support (PHTLS), completed over 250 EMS license renewals, and
hosted multiple in-house EMS preceptorships that produced new Advanced Emergency Medical
Technicians (AEMTs) and paramedics. The department also introduced and provided training on
new medical equipment, including video laryngoscopes and medications, and deployed a new
ambulance as part of its replacement plan. In collaboration with regional partners, the Reno Fire
Department delivered a comprehensive EMS refresher and provided medical training to law
enforcement, dispatch, private businesses, and the Northern Nevada Law Enforcement
Academy. Notably, the department welcomed a second medical director, Dr. Nicholas
VonFoerster, to enhance clinical engagement and education, and successfully integrated the
airport fire department into RFD’s EMS division, expanding capabilities with 24 additional EMS
providers.

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report



City of Sparks Fire Department’'s EMS Program Highlights for FY25

Over the past year, the Sparks Fire Department (SFD) made substantial strides in expanding and
strengthening its EMS capabilities. In partnership with REMSA Health, the department
successfully launched ground ambulance transport services, completing over 1,000 patient
transports and deploying a second AFG-funded ambulance. Significant training efforts supported
this growth, including department-wide implementation of ESO reporting software, ongoing
paramedic-level certifications (ACLS, PALS, PHTLS), division-level skills verifications, and
scenario-based training such as pediatric cardiac arrest management, and firefighter down
cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR). The department also advanced workforce development
through the successful graduation of five fire recruits, active support for nine personnel in
paramedic school, and onboarding of new EMS equipment and training protocols. With continued
investment in clinical excellence and community-focused service delivery, SFD remains committed
to delivering high-quality prehospital care and preparing its personnel for future challenges.

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District EMS Program Highlights for FY25

Throughout the year, Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFR) made substantial
progress in EMS operations, training, equipment upgrades, and regional collaboration. TMFR
expanded its training capabilities with advanced simulations, including active assailant and mass
casualty scenarios, and led the second Regional EMS Symposium to enhance prehospital care
and continuing education. Partnerships with Care Flight, REMSA Health, TMCC, and regional fire
agencies strengthened the training pipeline, while in-house paramedic programs and internships
helped foster future talent. Operationally, TMFR added multiple new Type-1 ambulances,
mechanical CPR devices (LUCAS), and video laryngoscopes to support high-quality patient care.
Notably, the department marked its first TMFR/Care Flight joint training, supported the Davis
Fire response with mutual aid coordination from Las Vegas Departments participating in backing
up our staff, and continued to refine cardiac arrest management and airway skills through
innovative, evidence-based training. As TMFR prepares to welcome Richard Edwards as the new
Fire Chief, the district stands well-positioned for continued excellence in EMS delivery and
regional leadership.

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report



REMSA Health's EMS Program Highlights for FY25

d

_=_REMSA
=" HEALTH.

4

Data Performance Reports — Includes Priority 1,2,3,4,9, & 99 calls for service within the

franchise service area

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total
Total EMS Responses 25,497 24,656 | 24,002 | 25,038 | 99,193
Total EMS Transports 15,900 15,988 16.017 | 16,179 | 64,084
Total EMS Responses Cancelled 9,606 8,605 7,889 8,767 34,867

Priority 1 Calls: High acuity calls, deemed life-threatening.

Priority 2 Calls: Medium acuity calls, no imminent danger.

Priority 3 Calls: Low acuity calls, no clear threat to life.

Priority 4 Calls: Non emergent transfer out of the hospital.

Priority 9 Calls: Also referred to as Omega calls, are the lowest acuity call.

Priority 99 Calls: Emergent lights and sirens transfer.

2 Q1:July 2024 September 2024
Q2: October 2024 — December 2024
Q3: January 2025 — March 2025
Q4: April 2025 - June 2025

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report

10



Use of Mutual Aid

To comply with section 12.2 (a) of the REMSA Health Franchise Agreement Amended August
25, 2022.

Use of Mutual Aid — Number of incidents by quarter when a co-response partner is requested for
mutual aid within the REMSA Health service area

Truckee Grand % of Overall
Quarter Carson City Reno Sparks REMSA Health
Meadows Total
Responses
Q1 1 79 17 97 0.44%
Q2 38 5 43 0.20%
Q3 19 1 2 22 0.09%
Q4 5 3 8 0.04%
Grand Total 1 141 1 27 170 0.21%

Use of Mutual Aid — Number of incidents by month when a co-response partner is requested for
mutual aid within the REMSA Health service area

Year/Month C?:ri:;n Reno Sparks J;:;Eevss Total
2024
Jul 19 1 20
Aug 28 6 34
Sep 1 32 10 43
Oct 22 5 27
Nov 6 6
Dec 10 10
2025
Jan 10 1 11
Feb 6 1 7
Mar 3 1 4
Apr 1 1
May 2 3 5
Jun 2 2
Total 1 141 1 27 170

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report

11



Tiered Response Reporting

To comply with section 12.2 (b) of the REMSA Health Franchise Agreement Amended on
August 25, 2022. Call Processing time is the total time to reach final EMD determinate.

Average Call Processing Time — Categorized priority calls received by REMSA Health's
Regional Emergency Communications Center (RECC) (minutes:seconds).

Priority Call Type

Month/vear P1 P2 P3 P9 Grand Total
July 24 02:34 02:37 02:41 02:54 02:38
August 24 02:33 02:36 02:34 02:57 02:36
September 24 02:28 02:30 02:33 02:49 02:31
October 24 02:34 02:26 02:29 02:40 02:30
November ‘24 02:24 02:28 02:32 02:39 02:28
December ‘24 02:24 02:30 02:32 N/A 02:28
January ‘25 02:18 02:44 02:22 N/A 02:28
February ‘25 02:27 02:40 02:31 N/A 02:32
March ‘25 02:23 02:32 02:19 N/A 02:24
April ‘25 02:17 02:49 02:21 N/A 02:29
May ‘25 02:17 02:20 02:24 N/A 02:20
June ‘25 02:20 02:23 02:28 N/A 02:23
Annual Summary 02:26 02:34 02:30 02:48 02:29

System Intermediate Life Support (ILS) Responses & Number of ILS Responses and
Transports to ILS Determinates - Total ILS responses include ILS co-response with an
(Advanced Life Support) ALS unit, interfacility, and ILS determinate responses

Total ILS TotalILS ILS Responses ILS Transports
Month/Year Response Transports to ILS to ILS
Determinants Determinants
July 24 713 554 292 171
August ‘24 721 550 304 166
September 24 739 582 308 175
October 24 844 649 398 241
November ‘24 764 579 377 220
December ‘24 1,026 777 487 273
January ‘256 1,305 633 493 279
February ‘25 1,010 517 441 289
March ‘25 1,279 649 460 282
April ‘25 1,275 946 637 370
May 25 1,373 1,035 699 415
June 25 1,373 1,037 702 396
Grand Total 12,422 8,508 5598 3277

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report

12



and transport.

Number of ILS Responses Upgraded to ALS - The number of ILS eligible calls and responses
that, once an ILS unit arrived on scene, an ALS unit was requested to respond to provide care

Month/Year ILS Responses ALS Intercepts % fl_lls_slnsc::rlise;rth
July 24 292 9 3.1%
August 24 304 6 2.0%
September ‘24 308 9 2.9%
October 24 292 9 3.1%
November ‘24 304 6 2.0%
December 24 308 9 2.9%
January ‘25 519 15 2.9%
February 25 378 15 4.0%
March 25 461 24 5.2%
April ‘25 659 16 2.4%
May ‘25 709 19 2.7%
June 25 730 38 5.2%

Average ILS Response Time by Zone - The response time target for low acuity, non-emergent
ILS calls shall be less than 19:59 for REMSA Health Zone A, 24:59 for Zone B, 29:59 for Zone
C, 39:59 for Zone D, & ASAP for Zone E. (Hour:Minutes:Seconds)

Average Response Time

Average Response Time

Zone A Zones B,C,D*
July 24 0:13:35 0:19:30
August 24 0:13:37 0:15:06
September 24 0:13:41 0:15:28
October 24 0:16:28 0:15:15
November ‘24 0:14:17 0:23:43
December ‘24 0:20:56 0:22:36
January 25 0:18:11 0:17:14
February ‘25 0:16:31 0:16:27
March ‘25 0:15:24 0:23:35
April ‘25 0:09:40 0:13:09
May 256 0:09:18 0:13:29
June 25 0:09:41 0:13:01
Average 0:14:37 0:17:11

*Due to low call volumes in the separately defined response zones B, C and D, REMSA Health

compliance response will be calculated in accordance with the Amended and Restated

Franchise Agreement for Ambulance Service dated February 23, 2023, as combined Zones B, C,

and D for all Priority 1 calls.

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report

13



Average on Scene Time per Month for ILS (Hours:Minutes:Seconds)

July 24 0:19:38
August 24 0:19:15
September 24 0:18:14
October ‘24 0:20:54
November ‘24 0:18:39
December 24 0:19:26
January ‘25 0:25:18
February ‘25 0:27:44
March ‘25 0:33:55
April ‘25 0:22:16

May 25 0:20:31

June 25 0:19:15
Average 0:21:51

Number of Calls Requiring Fire Riders on an ILS Transport

Number of ILS Calls Requiring Fire to

Percentage of Total Monthly

Month Ride into Hospital Responses
July ‘24 0 0%
August 24 0 0%
September ‘24 0 0%
October ‘24 2 1%
November ‘24 0 0%
December ‘24 0 0%
January ‘25 0 0%
February ‘25 1 0.3%
March ‘25 1 0.2%
April ‘25 3 0.5%
May 25 4 0.6%
June ‘25 2 0.3%

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report

14




Number of ILS Units Percentage* Based on Daily Staffing
Q1 Sunday Monday | Tuesday | Wednesday | Thursday | Friday | Saturday
ALS 32 43 38 41 42 40 36
ILS 5 6 9 8 9 8 7
13% 12% 19% 16% 18% 17% 16%
Q2
ALS 33 39 37 40 38 39 34
ILS 9 11 11 11 10 11 9
27% 28% 30% 28% 26% 28% 26%
Q3
ALS 35 41 41 42 40 41 36
ILS 12 14 14 17 13 14 12
34% 34% 34% 40% 32% 34% 33%
Q4
ALS 36 35 37 41 38 41 36
ILS 8 13 11 15 11 10 11
22% 37% 29% 36% 28% 24% 31%

*Percentages are calculated by ILS units divided by the total of ALS and ILS units.

Annual Summary

Over the past year, REMSA Health made significant strides in workforce expansion, fleet growth,
public engagement, and EMS operations. The agency hired 82 full-time field providers across all
certification levels—including 40 Paramedics, AEMTs, and EMTs in Q3 alone—and onboarded 48
per diem Special Events EMTs to support a demanding calendar of high-profile community events.
REMSA Health also added 10 new ambulances and supervisor vehicles, bringing its fleet to 60
and increasing operational capacity. The organization continued to lead in public health outreach
and media visibility, delivering timely health messaging, hosting national and international EMS
visitors, and earning multiple “Stars of Life” awards at both state and national levels. REMSA
Health's leadership in regional response efforts, like the Davis Fire, and its deep involvement in
community education—from dispatch excellence to car seat safety—demonstrated its continued
commitment to advancing emergency medical care across Northern Nevada. The year also marked
a leadership transition with the retirement of EMS Manager Brian Taylor and the appointment of

Sean Slamon to the role.

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report

15



EMS REGIONAL PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

EMS regional performance analysis review is conducted under the guidance and with the
approvals of the Washoe County Joint Advisory Committee (JAC) members. Until the Committee
reaches consensus on a system-wide, agency blinded, and patient-centric performance
framework that spans the full continuum of care, formal regional performance results will not be
published. The EMS Oversight Program serves as a facilitator for this framework, coordinating
EMS agencies from all jurisdictions in Washoe County to align definitions, data standards, and
quality improvement efforts. Reporting for regional performance will begin in FY26 once shared
definitions, measures, and data governance are adopted across all participating agencies in
Washoe County.

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report

16



JURISDICTIONAL PERFORMANCE

Washoe County Fire-EMS providers implemented and migrated multiple data pipelines on a phased schedule across FY25, with ESO
established as the system of record and quality controls in place for data access and security. Within the span of FY25, the EMS
Oversight Program entered into multiple Business Associate Agreements (BAA)s with all EMS regional providers to cover HIPAA
compliance for accessing patient sensitive data through a third-party software solution provider, ESO.

Under the ILA, the EMS Oversight Program monitors EMS delivered by the City of Reno Fire Department, the City of Sparks Fire
Department, Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District, and REMSA Health to support maintenance, improvement, and long-term
system performance. Each jurisdiction uses different performance standards; the following section presents those metrics. All results in
this section of the EMS annual report come from ESO Insights.

Table 1. First-arriving unit time performance for Regional Fire EMS Priority 1 (critical) and Priority 2 (emergent) calls in Washoe County,
FY25. Results are shown as number of calls used, number and percentage meeting the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA)

standard, plus the median and 90th-percentile times in minutes and seconds. Lower values indicate faster response.

Table 1: First Arriving Unit Time for Regional Fire EMS (300 series) by NFPA standards, Priority 1 (Critical) and 2 (Emergent) Calls, FY25 -

Washoe County
Calls Used Met Standard ; th
Time Measurement NFPA Standard Me_dlan 90 .
Number Number | Percentage Time Percentile
Turnout Time Less than or equal to 60 seconds 28,143 7,355 26% 01:29 02:31

Less th 24
Travel Time ess than or equal to 240 seconds 35,037 11,230 32% 05:01 08:57
or 4 minutes

Less th
Response Time — Dispatch to Arrival O:S;i:{jtz; equal to 300 seconds 28.143 6,430 23% 06:38 10:23

Response Time — PSAP to Arrival - 19,993 - - 08:17 12:42

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report 17



Table 1 summarizes how quickly the first fire/EMS unit arrived on Priority 1 and Priority 2 incidents
in FY25. Times are expressed as minutes: seconds. Median is the midpoint of all values; the 90th
percentile is the time by which 90 percent of responses were completed. Counts vary by measure
when specific timestamps are unavailable. Standards shown reflect NFPA thresholds where

applicable.

For Turnout Time, the NFPA standard is 60 seconds or less. There were 28,143 eligible calls;
7,355 met the standard, which is 26 percent. The median turnout time was 1:29, and the 90th
percentile was 2:31. For Travel Time, the NFPA standard is 240 seconds (4 minutes) or less. There
were 35,037 eligible calls; 11,230 met the standard, which is 32 percent. The median travel time
was 5:01, and the 90th percentile was 8:57. For Response Time from Dispatch to Arrival, the
NFPA standard is 300 seconds (5 minutes) or less. There were 28,143 eligible calls; 6,430 met
the standard, which is 23 percent. The median time from dispatch to arrival was 6:38, and the
90th percentile was 10:23. For Response Time from PSAP call receipt to Arrival, no NFPA
standard is listed in this table. There were 19,993 eligible calls. The median PSAP-to-arrival time
was 8:17, and the 90th percentile was 12:42. Because no standard is specified for this measure,
counts meeting a standard and percentages are not reported.

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report

18



Reno Fire Department

The City of Reno’s Master Plan, approved December 13, 2017, with additional updates effective
in November 2021, includes metrics to assess performance for fire departments, although the
Master Plan states these are not performance standards. The Master Plan is intended to guide
how the City of Reno will grow and develop over the next 20 years. The following statement is
used to gauge and measure progress toward the guiding principles and goals of the City of Reno

Master plan3:

Maintain or decrease the fire service average response time of 6 minutes O seconds. Additional

sets of response time performance measures are outlined in the City of Reno Master Plan®:

=  Urban: First fire department response unit will arrive at a fire emergency or medical
emergency within 4 minutes 30 seconds from time of dispatch, 85 percent of the time.

=  Suburban: First fire department response unit will arrive at a fire emergency or medical
emergency within 6 minutes 30 seconds from time of dispatch, 85 percent of the time.

=  Overall response time is measured from enroute time to arrival time. The mean, median for
overall, day vs. night response time for City of Reno is summarized above. Urban/Suburban
designation is not provided in the data submission by City of Reno.

3 REIMAGINE RENO. (2017). The City of Reno Master Plan, page 13. Reno, NV.
Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report

19



Table 2. Fire “Enroute to Arrival” response time (station-to-scene) for all priority call types, FY21—
FY25. Columns show overall Median, Mean, and 90th percentile (P90); daytime (06:00-18:00)
and nighttime (18:01-05:59) medians; and total incident count. Durations are minutes: seconds.
Lower values indicate faster response.

Table 2. Fire Enroute to Fire Arrival RFD: From Station to Scene, All Priority Call Types, FY25
Day Night
Fiscal Year Median Mean P90 06:00-18:00 | 18:01-05:69 Total
MEDIAN MEDIAN
2022 05:29 06:06 09:35 05:38 05:18 34,807
2023 05:56 05:22 09:26 05:30 05:11 30,843
2024 05:20 05:34 08:37 05:27 05:10 26,297
2025 05:13 05:44 09:16 05:19 05:03 29,471

Table 2 summarizes how long it took fire units to travel from being marked enroute to arriving on
scene across all priority call types, by fiscal year. Values are presented exactly in minutes: second.
“Median” is the midpoint of all enroute-to-arrival times; “Mean” is the arithmetic average; “P90" is
the time by which 90 percent of responses were completed. Daytime medians reflect calls
between 06:00 and 18:00; nighttime medians reflect calls between 18:01 and 05:59. The “Total”
column lists the number of calls included in each year’s calculation.

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report

20



Table 3. First-arriving unit time performance for Reno Fire Department (RFD) Priority 1 (emergent) EMS calls in Washoe County, FY25b.
Columns list the time measurement, the applicable NFPA (National Fire Protection Association) standard, calls used, number and

percent meeting the standard, and the median and 90th-percentile times in minutes: seconds. PSAP = Public Safety Answering Point.

Table 3: First Arriving Unit Time for Reno Fire Department (300 series) by NFPA standards, Priority 1 (Critical) Calls, FY25
Calls Used Met Standard ; th
Time Measurement NFPA Standard Me_dlan 90 .
Number Number | Percentage Time Percentile
Turnout Time Less than or equal to 60 seconds 15,668 4,103 26% 01:32 02:37
Travel Time Less than orequal to 240 seconds | g 35, 6,265 32% 05:02 09:02
or 4 minutes
L h
Response Time — Dispatch to Arrival | ¢S5 11an o equal to 300 seconds 15,668 3,419 22% 06:45 10:38
or 5 minutes
Response Time — PSAP to Arrival - 15,668 - - 08:35 13:02

Table 3 summarizes how quickly the first RFD unit arrived on Priority 1 EMS incidents in FY25. Times are presented as minutes: seconds.
“Median” is the midpoint of all observed times; the “90th percentile” is the time by which 90 percent of responses were completed.
Counts vary by measure when timestamps are unavailable. Where an NFPA threshold applies, the table shows how many and what
percentage of calls met that threshold.

For Turnout Time, the NFPA standard is 60 seconds or less. There were 15,668 eligible calls; 4,103 met the standard, which is 26
percent. The median turnout time was 1:32, and the 90th percentile was 2:37. For Travel Time, the NFPA standard is 240 seconds (4
minutes) or less. There were 19,380 eligible calls; 6,265 met the standard, which is 32 percent. The median travel time was 5:02, and
the 90th percentile was 9:02.

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report 21



For Response Time from Dispatch to Arrival, the NFPA standard is 300 seconds (5 minutes) or less. There were 15,668 eligible calls;
3,419 met the standard, which is 22 percent. The median dispatch-to-arrival time was 6:45, and the 90th percentile was 10:38. For
Response Time from PSAP call receipt to Arrival, no NFPA standard is listed in this table. There were 15,668 eligible calls. The median
PSAP-to-arrival time was 8:35, and the 90th percentile was 13:02. Because no standard is specified for this measure, counts meeting

a standard and percentages are not reported.

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report 22



Sparks Fire Department

Table 4. Median travel time to incident scene by station and call priority, FY25 (Stations 1-5 and

department-wide Total). Values are medians in minutes: seconds. Lower values indicate faster

response. Rows show All Priorities and Priority 1 calls.

Table 4: Median Travel Time by Station and SFD Priority, FY25

SFD Call Priority Station 1 Station 2 Station 3 Station 4 Station 5 Total
All Priorities 04.25 04:36 05:25 05:58 04:38 04:49
Priority 1 Calls 03:56 04:02 04:37 05:11 04:32 04:16

Table 4 reports the median travel time from dispatch to arrival for Sparks Fire Department units in
FY25, grouped by station and by priority category. The first row shows results for all priorities
combined. The second row shows results for Priority 1 calls only. For all priorities, the median
travel times are 04:25 at Station 1, 04:36 at Station 2, 05:25 at Station 3, 05:58 at Station 4, 04:38
at Station 5, and 04:49 overall. For SFD Priority 1 calls, the median travel times are 03:56 7at
Station 1, 04:02 at Station 2, 04:37 at Station 3, 05:11 at Station 4, 04:32 at Station 5, and 04:16
overall. Times are presented exactly as minutes: seconds.

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report

23



Table 5. First-arriving unit time performance for Sparks Fire Department (SFD) Priority 1 (emergent) EMS calls, FY25, shown against
NFPA. Columns list the time measurement, NFPA standard (if applicable), calls used, number and percent meeting the standard, and

the median and 90th-percentile times in minutes: seconds. PSAP = Public Safety Answering Point.

Table 5: First Arriving Unit Time for Sparks Fire Department (300 series) by NFPA standards, Priority 1 (Emergent) Calls, FY25

Calls Used Met Standard ; th
Time Measurement NFPA Standard Me_dlan 90 .
Number Number | Percentage Time Percentile
Turnout Time Less than or equal to 60 seconds 3,374 823 24% 01:26 02:17

Travel Time Less than or equal to 240 seconds 3.909 1,851 47% 04:07 06:50
or 4 minutes

Less th to 300 d
Response Time — Dispatch to Arrival ©ss _an OrEGHatto seconds 3,374 1,162 34% 05:41 08:18
or 5 minutes

Response Time — PSAP to Arrival - 3,374 - - 06:59 10:03

Table 5 summarizes how quickly the first SFD unit arrived on Priority 1 EMS incidents in FY25. Times are expressed as minutes: seconds.
For Turnout Time, the NFPA standard is < 60 seconds. There were 3,374 calls used; 823 met the standard (24%). The median turnout
time was 01:26, and the 90th percentile was 02:17. For Travel Time, the NFPA standard is < 240 seconds (4 minutes). There were
3,909 calls used; 1,851 met the standard 47%. The median travel time was 04:07, and the 90th percentile was 06:50.

For Response Time — Dispatch to Arrival, the NFPA standard is < 300 seconds (5 minutes). There were 3,374 calls used; 1,162 met the
standard (34%). The median time from dispatch to arrival was 05:41, and the 90th percentile was 08:18. For Response Time — PSAP
to Arrival, no NFPA standard is listed in this table. There were 3,374 calls used. The median PSAP-to-arrival time was 06:59, and the

90th percentile was 10:03. Counts meeting a standard and percentages are not shown because no threshold is specified.

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report 24



Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD) serves citizens in all incorporated and
unincorporated areas of Washoe County, not including Incline Village. TMFPD 10 career stations
are staffed by ALS paramedics. In addition to operating a fire department that provides response
for fire, on-scene EMS, and rescue service, Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District is a
subcontractor of REMSA Health operating limited to specific response zones agreed upon in the
ambulance transport services agreement to provide 24 hour/day, 7 days a week ambulance
service, including ground ambulance transport. Emergency medical calls serviced and transported
by TMFPD in the agreed limited response zones are subjected to dispatch and response time
compliance under REMSA Health Response Zone.

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report

25



Table 6. First-arriving ALS unit/engine time performance for Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD) in Washoe County,
FY25. Results show calls used, the number and percent meeting the stated standard, plus median and 90th-percentile times (minutes:

seconds).
Table 6: First Arriving ALS Unit/Engine Time for TMFPD (300 series) by NFPA standards, FY25
Calls
Met Standard i th
Time Measurement NFPA Standard Used Me.dlan 90 _
Time | Percentile
Number Number | Percentage
Turnout Time Less than or equal to 60 seconds 9,684 4,295 44% 01:05 02:01
Travel Time Less than orequal to 240 seconds | ) g4 | 378 27% | 0537 | 11:50
or 4 minutes
Res.ponse Time — Dispatch to Less than or equal to 300 seconds 9.684 2414 2504 06:44 1250
Arrival or 5 minutes
Res_ponse Time — PSAP to i 9.684 i i 07-55 1435
Arrival

Table 6 reports how quickly the first Advanced Life Support (ALS) unit or engine arrived on TMFPD incidents in FY25. Times are in
minutes and seconds. “Median” is the middle value; “90th percentile” is the time by which 90 percent of responses were completed.

Counts differ by measure when certain timestamps are missing.

For Turnout Time, measured against a standard of 60 seconds or less, 9,684 calls were eligible. Of those, 4,295 met the standard 44%.
The median turnout was 01:05, and the 90th percentile was 2 minutes 1 second. For Travel Time, measured against a standard of 240
seconds (4 minutes) or less, 11,970 calls were eligible. Of those, 3,228 met the standard (27 percent). The median travel time was 5
minutes 37 seconds, and the 90th percentile was 11 minutes 50 seconds. For Response Time from Dispatch to Arrival, measured
against a standard of 300 seconds (5 minutes) or less, 9,684 calls were eligible. Of those, 2,414 met the standard (25 percent). The
median time from dispatch to arrival was 6 minutes 44 seconds, and the 90th percentile was 12 minutes 50 seconds. For Response
Time from PSAP call receipt to Arrival, no standard is defined in this table. There were 9,684 eligible calls. The median PSAP-to-arrival

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report 26



time was 7 minutes 55 seconds, and the 90th percentile was 14 minutes 35 seconds. Counts meet a standard, and percentages are

not shown for this measure because no threshold is specified by NFPA.

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report 27



ABOUT THE NORTHERN NEVADA PUBLIC HEALTH EMS OVERSIGHT PROGRAM

On August 26, 2014, an ILA for Emergency Medical Services Oversight was fully executed
between the City of Reno, City of Sparks, Washoe County Board of Commissioners, Northern
Nevada Public Health (formerly Washoe County Health District), and Truckee Meadows Fire
Protection District. The ILA created the EMS Oversight Program, the purpose of which is to provide
oversight of all emergency medical services provided by Reno, Sparks, Washoe, and Regional
Emergency Medical Services Authority (REMSA) Health.

The Program is staffed with the equivalent of three and a half (3.5) full-time employees; one (1)
part-time Program Manager, one (1) full-time Program Coordinator, one (1) full-time Program
Statistician, one (1) part-time Office Specialist and one (1) part-time Sr. Office Specialist. The ILA
also created an Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board (EMSAB), comprised of the following

members:
a. City Manager, Reno
b. City Manager, Sparks
c. County Manager, Washoe County
d. District Health Officer
e. Emergency Room Physician (DBOH Appointment)?
f.  Hospital Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI) Representative (DBOH Appointment)

The EMSAB was established to provide a concurrent review of topics within the EMS system. The
purpose of the EMSAB is to review reports, evaluations, and recommendations of the Program,
discuss issues related to regional emergency medical services, and make recommendations to

respective jurisdictional boards and councils.

A summary of the eight duties of the Program, and seven duties of the signatory partners, as

designated per the ILA include:

EMS Oversight Program Roles & Responsibilities

1. Monitor the response and performance of each agency providing EMS in the region

2. Coordinate and integrate medical direction

3. Recommend regional standards and protocols

4. Measure performance, system characteristics, data, and outcomes for EMS to result in

recommendations

3 DBOH is the Washoe County District Board of Health; the governing board which oversees health-related issues
within Washoe County.

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY23 Annual Report 28



5.

Collaborate with partners on analyses of EMS response data and formulation of
recommendations for modifications or changes of the regional Emergency Medical
Response Map

|dentify sub-regions to be analyzed and evaluated for recommendations regarding EMS
response

Provide an annual report on the state of EMS to contain measured performance of each
agency and compliance with performances measures established by the Program for each
agency.

Create and maintain a five-year strategic plan to ensure continued improvement in EMS to

include standardized equipment, procedures, technology, training, and capital investments

Signatory Partner Roles & Responsibilities

1.

Provide information, records, and data on EMS dispatch and response for review, study,
and evaluation by the EMS Program

Participate in working groups for coordination, review, evaluation, and continued
improvement of EMS

Participate in the establishment and utilization of computer-aided-dispatch (CAD)-to-CAD
interface*

Work cooperatively with the EMS Oversight Program to provide input on the five-year
strategic plan and ensure two-way communication and coordination of EMS system as
future technologies, equipment, systems, and protocols evolve

Participate in the EMSAB

Strive to implement recommendations of the EMS Oversight Program or submit
recommendations to their respective governing bodies for consideration and possible
action

Submit recommendations regarding the EMS system to the EMS Oversight Program for

implementation or for consideration and possible action by the District Board of Health

4CAD-to-CAD is a two-way interface with allows for call-related information to be transferred between all agencies
involved with an incident to have access to live updates and incident status information.
Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report

29



EMS OVERSIGHT PROGRAM ACCOMPLISHMENTS FY25

During FY25, the EMS Oversight Program and Hospital Preparedness Program (HPP) at Northern
Nevada Public Health (NNPH) advanced several key initiatives that support regional EMS
coordination, healthcare preparedness, and community resilience. Activities are summarized

below by focus area.

Training and Exercises

Throughout FY25, Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight participated in a broad range of
trainings and exercises to strengthen public health, healthcare, and community emergency

preparedness. Below is a list of trainings and exercises.

e Radiation & Hazardous Materials Preparedness: Multiple trainings for TRIAD, CLEAR, and
law enforcement/ Explosive Ordnance Disposal (EOD) teams on radiation portal monitors,
Radiological Dispersal Device (RDD) response, and Department of Energy (DOE)/
Transportation Emergency Preparedness Program (TEPP) hazmat/ Weapons of Mass
Destruction (WMD) protocols.

e Workshops & Planning: Participation in state and regional Integrated Preparedness
Planning Workshops (IPPWs).

e Specialized Courses: TEEX MGT-475 (Crowd Management), MGT-348 (Medical
Preparedness for Bombing Incidents), and FEMA's Emergency Management Basic

Academy.
e Coalition Exercises: Weekly Hospital Net ham radio drills.

e Evacuation Readiness: Mutual Aid Evacuation Agreement (MAEA) training, patient transfer

drills, and real-world activation during the Davis Fire.

e Earthquake Preparedness: Extensive planning culminating in the No Fault of Our Own full-
scale exercise series (May 2025), including hospital evacuations, rubble pile rescues,
Regional Emergency Operations Center (REOC) activation, and Continuity of Operations
Planning (COOP) tabletop sessions.

e Other Preparedness Work: Incline Fireworks Table Top Exercise (TTX) (cyber/political
threats).

e University of Nevada Interprofessional Care 2025 Exercise: Mass casualty simulation with

students in medicine, nursing, and public health.

e Preparedness Summit (NACCHO, Apr—May 2025): National-level training, networking,

and best practice exchange.

FY25 saw dozens of trainings and exercises across diverse hazards—radiological, chemical,
infectious disease, earthquakes, mass casualty, cyber, and community health. These activities
enhanced coordination between public health, healthcare systems, emergency responders,
Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report

30



schools, and volunteers, ensuring stronger readiness for emergencies in Washoe County and

beyond.

EMS Strategic Plan (2023-2028)

Progress continued on the Washoe County EMS Strategic Plan, which guides the EMS Oversight
Program through 2028.

Goal 1: Promote an EMS culture of safety through reporting, measurement, prevention, and

mitigation.

Efforts to reduce EMS practitioner exposure to infectious illnesses began with the addition
of an Emergency Department (ED) Exposure Flowsheet, and there is ongoing discussion
about adding an Exposure Contact List for easier post-exposure follow-up. Given the very
low number of reported incidents, future exposures will be brought to the ED Consortium
for discussion.

To address practitioner safety during active shooter or civil unrest events, multiple
interagency Active Assailant Drills were held in July 2024 with law enforcement,
paramedic task forces, dispatch, and REMSA Health participating. Regional partners have
requested updates to the Regional Active Shooter Plan, which will require coordination

with law enforcement leadership.

Scene safety remains a major priority, particularly regarding aeromedical services. Ongoing
training has been provided for several fire agencies, focusing on safety, interaction, and
landing zone procedures. Care Flight continues to conduct annual safety stand-downs
with scenario-based training, and incident benchmarks have been identified for flights.
Additional coordination is needed to incorporate REMSA Health personnel and law
enforcement. The Traffic Incident Management (TIM) Coalition continues to bring EMS, fire,
and law enforcement partners together to improve roadway safety, supply responder
tourniquets, and coordinate Stop the Bleed training. Crash Responder Safety Week
proclamations have been made annually since 2023 and will continue throughout the life

of the plan.

Driving safety initiatives are being advanced through conversations with REMSA Health
about expanding training opportunities and tracking data on lights and sirens use. Updated
metrics will be discussed at the October Joint Advisory Committee (JAC) meeting, and
further evaluation of training and crash reduction efforts will follow once more data is

available.

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report

31



Goal 2:

Goal 3:

Goal 4:

Goal &:

Implement AVL technology to dispatch the closest unit by February 2028

Regional partners are preparing for Automatic Vehicle Location (AVL)-based dispatch
once the Hexagon system goes live in 2026. Agencies are verifying their AVL capabilities,
and approvals for use are being obtained through governing boards. A mutual aid
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) was approved between TMFPD and Reno Fire in
October 2024, representing progress toward regional adoption. Work is ongoing to define

a regional dispatching process, with follow-up needed with dispatch leadership.
Explore opportunities for a Regional Community Paramedicine Program

Research into funding sources, legislative codes, and best practices for a regional program
is underway, led primarily by TMFPD. While hiring process development is paused due to
funding limitations, discussions are ongoing about whether REMSA Health’s Community
Care Coordination Program could help fulfill some of the objectives. Metrics for program
success will be established once the program is operational, with future coordination
planned with partner agencies.

Improve communications between EMS partners through technology

Interoperability between UHF and 800 MHz radio systems has been maintained as the
P25 system is phased in. Regular radio interoperability meetings have supported planning,
and successful radio patching has been demonstrated at regional events such as the 2024
Rib Cook Off. REMSA Health has continued to expand access to 800 MHz radios and

provide temporary radios for special events.

Regional Computer-Aided Dispatch (CAD) implementation remains linked to ongoing
discussions about system regionalization. Updates are being provided to EMSAB each
quarter, and dispatch center training is scheduled for mid-2025. Full Public Safety
Answering Point (PSAP) participation is expected following the regional CAD rollout
projected for 2026.

Improve continuity of care

Regional partners continue to work toward a sustainable performance review process for
the EMS system. The dissolution of the Prehospital Medical Advisory Committee (PMAC)
has prompted discussions about new structures for continuous quality improvement,
especially in light of AB 102. Hospital data-sharing agreements are currently under legal

review, which will be critical for advancing quality improvement efforts.

Identification of performance metrics and production of annual reports remain tied to this
foundational work. NNPH recently gained access to ESO, which will support identification

of relevant data elements.

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report

32



Goal 6: Strengthen collaborative EMS models

o A Teams dashboard has been launched to organize strategic plan documentation, with
files and timelines available by goal. Structured feedback loops are in place through
quarterly EMSAB and JAC meetings, and efforts are underway to improve the quality of
data shared in those settings. Progress reports are provided to EMSAB on a regular basis,

and reporting to ILA signatories continues annually.

e Planning for the next EMS Strategic Plan (2029-2034) will begin in 2028 with a SWOT
or similar analysis, followed by formation of a planning committee and presentation to
EMSAB. In the meantime, biennial updates to the Multi-Casualty Incident (MCI) Plan and
Alpha Annex have been completed in 2024 and 2025, with planning already initiated for
the FY26 update. Ongoing coordination between dispatch, REMSA Health, fire, and law

enforcement continues to strengthen operational communication during incidents.
Goal 7: Create a Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI) process with JAC

e Work continues toward the development of a CQI process for reviewing pre-hospital
treatment and patient outcomes. Research is being conducted on best practices and
models that could be adapted for the region. This effort is being led by NNPH staff in
collaboration with EMS partners, with the intent of establishing a framework that balances

legal protections with meaningful review and discussion of patient outcomes.

Trauma Data and Reporting

NNPH continued to collect, review, and apply Trauma Registry data to support EMS planning and
quality improvement. The program used trauma data to identify potential system gaps and to
guide regional discussions on EMS outcomes and performance improvement. These efforts ensure
that trauma-related insights are integrated into EMS system planning and contribute to evidence-
based decision-making.

MCI and MAEA Plan Updates

The Multi-Casualty Incident (MCI) and Multi-Agency Evacuation Agreement (MAEA) Plans were
reviewed and updated in FY25 to maintain alignment with regional protocols and state-level
guidance. Updates incorporated lessons learned from recent exercises and real-world incidents,
particularly regarding patient distribution and coordination with hospitals. NNPH worked closely
with EMS and healthcare partners to ensure these plans reflect current operational realities and

remain actionable during emergencies.

Community Services Development (CSD) Memo Review

As part of ongoing program oversight, NNPH reviewed thirty-four (34) Community Services

Development (CSD) memos to assess their impact on EMS and healthcare preparedness.

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report

33



Special Events

In FY25, NNPH provided support for a range of special events across the region, working with
EMS, law enforcement, fire agencies, and hospitals to ensure appropriate medical coverage and
rapid response capacity. This included planning and coordination for events with mass-gathering
potential, where risks of mass-casualty incidents are elevated. NNPH'’s role focused on ensuring
communication readiness, coordination among partner agencies, and capturing after-action

feedback to strengthen preparedness for future events.

EMS OVERSIGHT PROGRAM PRIORITIES FOR NEXT 4 YEARS

The EMS Oversight Program’s priorities for the next four years align with the Washoe County EMS
Strategic Plan 2023-2028, which was developed with input from local stakeholders and the EMS
Advisory Board. The program’s key goals are:

1. Safety Culture — Strengthen EMS practitioner safety by expanding active shooter training,

increasing scene safety measures, and improving driver safety practices by 2028.

2. Performance Enhancement - Leverage technology and training to improve EMS
performance, beginning with the implementation of regional Automatic Vehicle Locator
(AVL) technology by 2028.

3. Communication Improvements — Enhance regional communications through Computer-
Aided Dispatch (CAD) integration and radio interoperability by 2026.

4. Continuity of Care — Develop and implement a continuous quality improvement (CQI)
process by 2026 to monitor and report on EMS system performance.

5. Collaborative Models — Foster stronger collaboration among EMS providers, fire agencies,
and health partners through regular updates and strategic planning efforts through 2029.

6. Quality Improvement (CQI) — Finalize and implement a CQI process for reviewing pre-
hospital treatment outcomes by mid-2026.

7. Exploring State EMS Role — Develop a workgroup to examine the feasibility of NNPH

assuming the role of State EMS, per AB 102, for all functions except trauma designation.

These goals are guided by structured timelines, regular evaluation, and strong interagency
collaboration, all designed to enhance EMS system efficiency, practitioner safety, and patient

outcomes.

In addition to advancing the Five-Year Strategic Plan, the EMS Oversight Program will continue to

strengthen partnerships, facilitate trainings and exercises, and update emergency response plans
Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report

34



as needed. The program will also focus on revising the Ambulance Service Franchise, utilizing
Trauma Registry data, and exploring the integration of patient outcome data into system

evaluation.

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report

35



NORTHERN NE

Public Health

Serving Reno, Sparks & Washoe County

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report

36



NORTHERN AGENDA PACKET NO. jtem 7

Public Health

Serving Reno, Sparks & Washoe County

Staff Report
Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board
Board Meeting Date: November 6, 2025

DATE: October 29, 2025
TO: Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board
FROM: Andrea Esp, Preparedness and EMS Program Manager

775-326-6042, aesp@nnph.org

SUBJECT: EMS Oversight Program and Performance Data Updates - Joint Advisory
Committee Activities, EMS Strategic Plan, Special Projects, EMS Planning, Data
Performance, REMSA Health Franchise Agreement Updates, REMSA Health
Exemption Requests, Community Services Department Reviews, Mass Gatherings
and Special Events Reviews, and Trauma Registry Project

EMS Partners — Joint Advisory Committee (JAC)

During the first quarter of fiscal year (FY) 2026, the EMS Joint Advisory Committee (JAC) continued to support
regional EMS oversight, data-driven performance improvement, and franchise-agreement work with REMSA
Health. Key JAC activity centered on data integration, performance monitoring, and recommended contract
revisions to improve regional EMS operations and oversight.

Advanced data integration and analytics — JAC participants reviewed plans for integrating ESO (electronic
patient care record/analytics platform) into regional EMS data workflows to strengthen data-driven decision
making and operational performance monitoring.

Monitored program performance — The committee reviewed EMS Oversight Program metrics and REMSA
performance reporting (response times, compliance by zone, incident details, staffing/education) to identify
trends and areas for improvement. Those performance inputs informed recommendations to the EMS Advisory
Board.

EMS Strategic Plan

During the first quarter of FY26, the EMS Oversight Program continued advancing key strategic goals. Safety
initiatives included ongoing training for aeromedical scene safety and preparations for updated driving safety
metrics. AVL dispatch readiness progressed as agencies verified capabilities ahead of the 2026 Hexagon
system launch. NNPH gained access to ESO, supporting efforts to define performance metrics and improve
continuity of care.

Special Projects

Washoe County EMS Regional Performance Measures — The annual report feedback survey was
distributed to EMS/Fire agencies to set regional measures and standards that are both useful and
meaningful for the system and patient outcome. Upon review of the survey feedback, the EMS program
proposed 39 pre-hospitalization, outcome and quality measures adopted from the National Emergency



Subject: EMS Oversight Program and Performance Data Updates - Joint Advisory Committee Activities, EMS

Strategic Plan, Special Projects, EMS Planning, Data Performance, REMSA Health Franchise Agreement Updates, N Np H
REMSA Health Exemption Requests, Community Services Department Reviews, Mass Gatherings and Special =

Events Reviews, and Trauma Registry Project

Date: November 6, 2025

Page: 2 of 3

Medical Services Information System (NEMSIS), Cardiac Arrest Registry to Enhance Survival
(CARES), and Get With The Guidelines-Stroke (GWTG-S) databases to advance regional objective of
providing an agency-blinded, patient-focused measures of the EMS system in Washoe County. The
objectives will be completed over the course of three phases.

Phase 1 - Confirm Phase 2 - Decide on Phase 3 - Authorize
priority conditions outcome registries accessto

and metrics for linkage (CARES, information to begin
including any stroke, PCI, trauma); mapping & testing
required agency finalize DUAs/BAAs

subsets as needed

UNLV-NNPH fellow presented EMS quality improvement project “From Data to Action: A Strategic
Approach to Quality Assurance with a Trauma Registry” at the Joint Advisory Committee on July 2,
2025. The objective from the QI project was to provide insight on EMS Step One protocol adherence
and efficacy in Washoe County.

EMS Emergency Planning

Due to grant requirements, the Multi-Casualty Incident (MCI) Plan, MCI Alpha Annex, and Mutual Aid
Evacuation Agreement (MAEA) will be updated annually. This process began in the first quarter of FY26,
involving all partners and providing a forum for group discussion, feedback, and suggestions. All three plans
will be presented to the Inter-Hospital Coordination Council (IHCC) by June 2026. The MAEA training video
is expected to be available by the end of fiscal year.

Data Requests

EMS Data Request Dashboard — For Q1 FY26, the EMS Oversight Program logged 4 unique data requests
from regional EMS agencies and organizations with 59 hours of cycle time. The average time spent on each
data request is approximately 15 hours.




Subject: EMS Oversight Program and Performance Data Updates - Joint Advisory Committee Activities, EMS

Strategic Plan, Special Projects, EMS Planning, Data Performance, REMSA Health Franchise Agreement Updates, N Np H
REMSA Health Exemption Requests, Community Services Department Reviews, Mass Gatherings and Special =

Events Reviews, and Trauma Registry Project

Date: November 6, 2025

Page: 3 of 3

Northern Nevada Public Health EMS Regional Data Requests Time Based Metric(s) Dashboard

Cummulative Cycle Time

EMS Regional Data Project Summary Time to Completion by Hours ANMUAL YEAR
a0 B Select all
W =025
; 4
;
One Time Number of Unique Requests

Oecurresce

EMS Regional Data Project Summary by Agency

Agency Humber of Unique  Estimated Completion in - Estirmated Completion
Raquests Hours Hours per Reguest
REMSA/EMS Crersight 1 30 3000
Average Time Spent on
PHD 1 2 200 Requests (Hours)
Total 4 59 14.75

Community Services Department Reviews

The EMS Oversight Program staff reviews and analyzes project applications received from the Planning and
Building Division of the CSD and the City of Reno Housing and Urban Development (HUD), providing
feedback as needed. In the first quarter of the fiscal year 2026, staff received and reviewed twelve (12) project
applications. There were no comments or concerns regarding the impact on EMS response.

Special Event/Mass Gatherings Applications

The EMS Oversight Program received one (1) Mass Gathering application in the first quarter of fiscal year
2026. However, it did not meet the minimum attendance requirement to qualify as a mass gathering.

Attachments
EMSAB - 11-6-2025 - Program Report PowerPoint



Washoe County
EMS Regional

Performance
Metrics

Item 7-A.

Proposed selected domain at Joint
Advisory Committee (JAC) meeting on
September 3, 2025. Focus on regional,
agency blinded, quality patient care and
outcomes data.

Domain Proposed
* Safety & Reliability
e Clinical Process Adherence
* Outcomes & Patient Experience




Washoe County EMS Regional Performance Metrics

Phase 1 - Confirm Phase 2 - Decide on Phase 3 - Authorize
priority conditions outcome registries access to

and metrics for linkage (CARES, information to begin
including any stroke, PCI, trauma); mapping & testing
required agency finalize DUAs/BAAs

subsets as needed

CURRENT PHASE



National Fire
Protection

Association
(NFPA) Standards

NFPA are standards, not laws. They
become legally enforceable only when:

1) Adopted by a government authority

2) Referencedin another code or
regulation

NFPA standards represents gold standard
for fire safety, but their legal adoption and
enforcement do not apply in Washoe
County.



First Arriving Unit Compliance

Turnout Time - Dispatched to En Route

NFPA standards

20,078 «»

Criteria: Emergent Calls, First Arriving

cilrbris MacEng oA * 27% of high priority calls had turnout
time less than or equal to 60 seconds
24,471 Q
etan e * 35% of high priority calls had travel time
. less than or equal to 4 minutes

1 HmEe

LK



First Arriving Unit Compliance

Unit Response Time - Dispatch to Arrival

Tatal Inciden

20 078 4
T B “ NFPA standards

Criteria: Emergent Calls, First Arriving Unit, ALS
Unit, Medical Unit, Engine.

10m:18s
time less than or equal to 5 minutes.
90th % Total Response Time Total Incidents * Median total response time for high priority
-| 2m435 2[] 078 calls from PSAP to arrivalis 8 minutes and 12

seconds (No NFPA standards)

Medi: » DBm:12s



Item 8

Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board
Board Meeting Date: November 6, 2025

DATE: October 16, 2025
TO: Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board
FROM: Kenneth Kitts, Director

775-848-9800, kkitts@remsahealth.com

THROUGH: Andrea Esp, Preparedness and EMS Program Manager
775-326-6042, aesp@nnph.org

SUBJECT:  Regional Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) Update

SUMMARY

The Councils for the City of Reno and the City of Sparks, and the Washoe County Board of
Commissioners, have directed staff to design a regional 911 call process that serves the
community by prioritizing the user experience and optimizing resource deployment. This
initiative aims to reduce duplicated processes, improve the use of technology, simplify
governance, and enhance service delivery.

Staff identified the need to replace and redesign disparate technologies currently in use across
local public safety agencies. Through regional collaboration, a unified regional Computer Aided

Dispatch (CAD) and Records Management System (RMS) is being implemented.

PROJECT DETAILS

Four partner agencies—the City of Reno, City of Sparks, Washoe County, and REMSA Health—
have agreed to procure and implement the Hexagon Unified CAD and RMS suite. Following
acceptance of the Hexagon Governance Agreement in September 2023, regional staff have been
working with Hexagon under a structured and collaborative implementation schedule. Partner
agencies have assigned key personnel and resources to ensure an equal voice and contribution to
project success.

Since project inception, the three governance boards—the Managers Board, Executive Board,
and Change Advisory Board—have held public meetings to establish representative roles. The
Managers Board approved an initial project budget, while the Executive Board assumed
responsibility for overseeing the creation of an Operations Manual for administrative use.

A consultant firm, Federal Engineering, was contracted to provide project management services.
Regional Project Manager Sheryl Contois has been instrumental in maintaining coordination and


mailto:kkitts@remsahealth.com
mailto:aesp@nnph.org

advancing regional collaboration.

A key project goal is to reduce or eliminate technological barriers that affect emergency service
efficiency and caller experience. Partner agencies have worked collaboratively to unify processes
and ensure the redesigned system aligns with project goals.

Regional Design Elements:

Regionalized Unit Definitions (CAD)

Regionalized Incident Types (CAD)

Integrated Multi-Jurisdictional Response Plans (CAD)

Automated Triggers for Automatic Aid Responses (CAD)

Regionalized Incident Reports (RMS)

Advanced Information Sharing Across Agencies (RMS)

Advanced Regional Workflows to Improve Booking Process (RMS)

Regionalized Key Data Elements (CAD/RMS)

New Integrations to Third Party Platforms to Improve Information Access and Sharing
(CAD/RMYS)

District Health Strategic Priorities supported by this item:

4. Impactful Partnerships: Extend our impact by leveraging partnerships to make meaningful
progress on health issues.

PREVIOUS ACTION
August 1, 2024: Regional Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) update provided to the board.
BACKGROUND

The City of Reno, City of Sparks, Washoe County, and other contracted agencies currently utilize
a CAD, RMS, and Jail Management System (JMS) owned, funded, and managed by the City of
Reno, originally purchased in 1999. While functional, the current system has exceeded its
expected lifespan, is ineligible for updates, and no longer meets the growing technological needs
of a regional Next Generation 911 system.

Additionally, REMSA and Truckee Meadows Fire & Rescue manage their own CAD system,
which operates independently and does not communicate with the regional systems. These
disparate technologies require manual communication and coordination, potentially causing
delays or miscommunication in emergency response.

The project began with the goal of replacing aging systems. However, as collaboration evolved,
the scope expanded to include REMSA as a full partner—creating a truly regional, unified Next
Generation 911 system.

FISCAL IMPACT

No fiscal impact.
RECOMMENDATION
Not applicable.
POSSIBLE MOTIONS




Not applicable.
ATTACHMENTS
e EMSAB - 11-6-2025 - Hexagon Update




Regional CAD/RMS Implementation Team

mmm

GIS

e
Patrick Coordinators and

Reglonal PM is
primary point of
contact for

Global Admms Plus:

—— e
Tatiana Alvarez 4

David Bonini Diane House (DPM)
FE Team
Hexagon PM may

work directly with
Agency Coordinators

ite H-mmnn u...l

S City o!
[RENO]

Project/Contract Oversight
Reno, Sparks, Washoe,
REMSA

(see Governance Team)

IT Management
CIO Zamanian Behzad TN
TS IT Manager Kobe Harkins ol Admin, i\
Erick Willrich ‘:‘:’C‘L’::;d &
(Washoe County) suidingconfguring
T Director Craig Franden (Reno) e
IT Director Rich Brown (Sparks) agency-specic

\_ confguatons /

Agency Coordinators

Kenny Kitts/
Shannon Popovich

REMSA Coordinator -

Reno Coordinator -
Cody Shadle/
(Alt) Elaina Hooper (Alt)

Washoe County — Sparks Coordinator -
Erick Willrich Sheila Lichius-Ill

Byron Tam -
Global Admin

‘Abram Fore:
Global Y.

David Harkins
Admin 4‘ REMSA

Kevin Cross
Global Admin

v

REMSA Core Teams

v

Reno Core Teams

Washoe Core Teams

Sparks Core Teams

Dispatch Mobile Dispatch Mobile Records MFR Dispatch Mobile Records MFR Dispatch Mobile Records MFR

Updated 07/08/2020

Item 8-A.



Regional CAD/RMS Governance

Regional CAD/RMS

Regional CAD/RMS
Change Advisory Board

Managers Board

Regional CAD/RMS
Executive Board

Regional CAD/RMS
Project Oversight Committee
HXGN Reno, Sparks, Washoe County, REMSA

Executive Review Board (ERB)
Reno Agency Coordinator Cody Shadle
IT Director Craig Franden
Asst. City Manager JW Hodge
Police Chief Kathryn Nance Fire Chief Dave Cochran
Sparks Agency Coordinator Sheila Lichius-Ill
Police Chief Chris Crawforth (Interim City Manager)
Fire Chief Walt White
IT Director Rich Brown
REMSA Agency Coordinator Kenneth Kitts
Chief Operating Officer REMSA Adam Heinz
Fire Chief Charles Moore Truckee Meadows Fire & Rescue
Division Chief Joseph Schum Truckee Meadows Fire & Rescue
Washoe County Agency Coordinator Erick Willrich
Assistant County Manager Dave Solaro
Chief Deputy Timothy Mosley Washoe County Sheriff's Office
Chief Information Officer Zamanian Behzad
Technical Services IT Manager Kobe Harkins
GIS IT Manager Quinn Korbulic




Regional CAD/RMS Technology Oversight

ClO Zamanian Behzad

Kobe Harkins
Erick Willrich

Quinn Korbulic

Washoe Primary
Contact: Byron Tam

CAD System
Specialists
(2)

RMS System
Specialists

2)

Reno Primary
Contact: Abram
Forest

CAD System
Specialists
(2)

RMS System
Specialists
(2)

Byron Tam Regional
Global Admin
(Washoe County)

Abram Forest Regional
Global Admin
(Reno) David Harkins
Regional Global Admin
(REMSA)
Kevin Cross Regional
Global Admin
(sparks)

REMSA Primary
Contact: David
Harkins

Sparks Primary
Contact: Kevin Cross

CAD System
Specialists

(2)

CAD System
Specialists
(2)

RMS System
Specialists

()

Update in
Progress

NOTES:

Regional System Admins support all partner agencies
with global ication support, global i
and ... Any Global Changes must be approved through
the Regional CAD/RMS Change management process.

CAD and RMS System Specialists are internal resources
employed within each agency and tasked with
application support, agency-specific configuration, and
first-line troubleshooting. System Specialists must
report all agency configuration changes through the
change mangement process.




Hexagon Unified CAD &
RMS Replacement Project
Update

August
2025

=_REMSA
= HEALTH.




Backgrounad

©00006

EXPLORATION & RFP PROCESS = REGIONALIZATIO  GOVERNANCE & CONFIGURE &
CONSULTANT N WORKGROUP AGREEMENT IMPLEMENT
RFQ

= HEALTH 2

| :{#. ‘.\‘:; 73 =_REMSA



Governanc
e Boards

—_

Manager’s
Board

Executive
Board

Change
Advisory
Board

Oversight
Budget Approval
Conflict Resolution

Support
Operational Guidelines
Budget Development

Change Management

@) B s



«d HEXAGON

On Call Dispatch
&
On Call Records

DUMP

i)

PSP EPEP

o
a
r

=

Pending (5}
o GAS LEAK/SMELL O 1252
GAS 819 min
0 min

Fs86
% DUMPSTER FIRE 1300
-8t min
” t2min

A7 Pipar Rarsch R San g, Calformia 32154
Fsg

ROBBERY 1252

819 min

Wmin

SICK PERSON 124
D20min
3min

42 Couar E Chavez ey, San Dvage. Casna, 2113

£19

TRESPASSING 1251
& 19min
10 min

v g

All (106 Aualable (96) Patral (17) & O
=@
UnitiD o Type W W | Camentlod.  Agenty o
a s 1520 Via b Cuml

s Sp({f‘ 45’

E N
=
5

R
H

EMSA
EALTH




Key Accomplishments

8 Hardware & Software Installation Complete
& System Build & Configuration 95% Complete

/3 Party Integrations 80% Complete

= Disaster Recovery/Back-Up Site Installation

3 HEALTH

w 3_REMSA
N RENO

5



VAVAVAVAN
VAVAVAVAN

Meeting
Regional
Goals

Through
Design

Common Language

Integrated Responses

Automation with Al

Regional Processes

Information Access

T . REMSA

' RENO = HEALTH
A



Remaining Timeline

b 9o b o o
P\\)g t SGQ\ &0\1 L2 ?e‘o L \“@( 1

1 Testing \‘ Training 1 Gl lReIiability

W B g
(7 X e =_REMSA
V) Spirks ==
“‘\\_;E-\_-,/‘/ - P = HEALTH




Project Status
+/ Delayed Schedule (4 months)

On Budget
-ully Supported

Prepared for Go-Live on
02/23/26

EMSA
HHHHHH




NORTHERN

Public Health

Serving Reno, Sparks & Washoe County

AGENDA PACKET NO. Item9

Staff Report

Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board

Board Meeting Date: November 6, 2025

DATE: October 29, 2025
TO: Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board
FROM: Dr. Von Foerster, EMSAB ER Physician

THROUGH: Andrea Esp, Preparedness and EMS Program Manager
775-326-6042, aesp(@nnph.org

SUBJECT: Presentation and Discussion of Recommendations from the National Association of
EMS Physicians (NAEMSP) Statement.

SUMMARY

The National Association of EMS Physicians (NAEMSP) recently released a position statement outlining
recommendations for enhancing Emergency Medical Services (EMS) system oversight, medical direction, and
performance improvement. The statement emphasizes the critical role of local health authorities and EMS
oversight bodies in supporting coordinated, data-driven system management.

These recommendations directly support Goal #5 of the Washoe County EMS Strategic Plan: Design an
enhanced EMS response system through improved continuity of care by December 31, 2024.

This report provides a summary of the key recommendations from the NAEMSP statement and is presented for
discussion regarding their potential alignment with the Washoe County EMS system and the Northern Nevada

Public Health (NNPH) EMS
PREVIOUS ACTION

Not applicable.
BACKGROUND

Not applicable.

FISCAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact.
RECOMMENDATION

Oversight Program.

There is no recommendation.

POSSIBLE MOTION
Not applicable
ATTACHMENTS



mailto:aesp@nnph.org

Subject: Presentation and Discussion of Recommendations from the National Association of EMS Physiciags
(NAEMSP) Statement. aN Np H
Date: November 6, 2025 -

Page: 2 of 2

e EMSAB- 11-6-2025 - Joint Position Statement on EMS Performance Measures Beyond Response
Times



Prehospital Emergency Care

ISSN: 1090-3127 (Print) 1545-0066 (Online) Journal homepage: www.tandfonline.com/journals/ipec20

Taylor & Francis
Taylor & Francis Group

Item 9-A.

Joint Position Statement on EMS Performance
Measures Beyond Response Times

Douglas F. Kupas, Matt Zavadsky, Brooke Burton, Chip Decker, Robert
Dunne, Peter Dworsky, Richard Ferron, Daniel Gerard, Joseph Grover, Joseph
House, Jeffrey Jarvis, Sheree Murphy, Jerry Overton, Michael Redlener,
George W. Solomon, Andrew Stephen, Randy Strozyk, Marv Trimble, Thomas
Wieczorek & Kathryn Wire

To cite this article: Douglas F. Kupas, Matt Zavadsky, Brooke Burton, Chip Decker, Robert
Dunne, Peter Dworsky, Richard Ferron, Daniel Gerard, Joseph Grover, Joseph House, Jeffrey
Jarvis, Sheree Murphy, Jerry Overton, Michael Redlener, George W. Solomon, Andrew Stephen,
Randy Strozyk, Marv Trimble, Thomas Wieczorek & Kathryn Wire (2024) Joint Position
Statement on EMS Performance Measures Beyond Response Times, Prehospital Emergency
Care, 28:8, 1068-1069, DOI: 10.1080/10903127.2024.2375739

To link to this article: https://doi.org/10.1080/10903127.2024.2375739

@ Published online: 01 Oct 2024.

N
CJ/ Submit your article to this journal

||I| Article views: 10014

A
& View related articles '

@ View Crossmark data (&'

CrossMark

@ Citing articles: 1 View citing articles (&

Full Terms & Conditions of access and use can be found at
https://www.tandfonline.com/action/journalinformation?journalCode=ipec20


https://www.tandfonline.com/journals/ipec20?src=pdf
https://www.tandfonline.com/action/showCitFormats?doi=10.1080/10903127.2024.2375739
https://doi.org/10.1080/10903127.2024.2375739
https://www.tandfonline.com/action/authorSubmission?journalCode=ipec20&show=instructions&src=pdf
https://www.tandfonline.com/action/authorSubmission?journalCode=ipec20&show=instructions&src=pdf
https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/mlt/10.1080/10903127.2024.2375739?src=pdf
https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/mlt/10.1080/10903127.2024.2375739?src=pdf
http://crossmark.crossref.org/dialog/?doi=10.1080/10903127.2024.2375739&domain=pdf&date_stamp=01%20Oct%202024
http://crossmark.crossref.org/dialog/?doi=10.1080/10903127.2024.2375739&domain=pdf&date_stamp=01%20Oct%202024
https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/citedby/10.1080/10903127.2024.2375739?src=pdf
https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/citedby/10.1080/10903127.2024.2375739?src=pdf
https://www.tandfonline.com/action/journalInformation?journalCode=ipec20

PREHOSPITAL EMERGENCY CARE
2024, VOL. 28, NO. 8, 1068-1069
https://doi.org/10.1080/10903127.2024.2375739

Taylor & Francis
Taylor &Francis Group

POSITION STATEMENTS

‘ W) Check for updates‘

Joint Position Statement on EMS Performance Measures Beyond Response Times

, Matt Zavadsky” _
, Daniel Gerard" (), Joseph Grover’

Douglas F. Kupas®
Richard Ferron9

Marv Trimble"”*, Thomas Wieczorek', and Kathryn Wire"

, Brooke Burton® .
, Joseph Housé), Jeffrey Jarvis
Jerry Overton™, Michael Redlener'”, George W. Solomon®

, Chip Decker?, Robert Dunne® (@), Peter Dworsky",
, Sheree Murphy',
, Andrew StephenP, Randy Strozyk?,

*Division of EMS, Department of Emergency Medicine, Geisinger Health System, Danville, Pennsylvania; ®Board of Directors, National
Association of Emergency Medical Technicians, Fort Worth, Texas; “National EMS Management Association, Salt Lake City, Utah; “Richmond
Ambulance Authority, Richmond, Virginia; *Wayne State University, Detroit, Michigan; finternational Association of EMS Chiefs, Washington,
D.C.; °Niagara Emergency Medical Services, Niagara-on-the-Lake, Ontario, Canada; PInternational Association of EMS Chiefs, San Francisco,
California; 'Department of Emergencz Medicine, University of North Carolina (UNC), Chapel Hill, North Carolina; 'National Association of State

EMS Officials, Falls Church, Virginia;

Office of the Medical Director, Metropolitan Area EMS Authority (MedStar), Fort Worth, Texas; 'National

EMS Quality Alliance, New York, New York; MInternational Academies of Emergency Dispatch, Salt Lake City, Utah; "Department of
Emergency Medicine, Icahn School of Medicine at Mount Sinai, New York, New York; °Clinical Affairs, American College of Emergency
Physicians, Irving, Texas; PAmerican Paramedic Association, Windsor, Colorado; “Operations, Global Medical Response, Lewisville, Texas;
"Garrison lowa Fire Department, Garrison, lowa; *EMS/Rescue Section, National Volunteer Fire Council, Garrison, lowa; ‘Center for Public
Safety Management, LLC/ICMA, Washington, DC; “Center for Patient Safety, Chesterfield, Missouri

ARTICLE HISTORY
Received 19 June 2024; Accepted 27 June 2024

Emergency Medical Services (EMS) exist to provide safe and
effective out-of-hospital medical care to communities.
Historically, response time has been the primary measure
used to assess the performance of an EMS system/agency.
Public policymakers have adopted response time because it
is objective, quantifiable, and easily understood, however,
this standard is derived from the need to respond quickly to
cardiac arrest and time-sensitive conditions. While it is
essential to continue to monitor and promote effective
response, the majority of 9-1-1 EMS responses do not
require a response time under ten minutes (1). Reliance
solely on response time performance increases the cost of
EMS and the risk of EMS vehicle crashes. It also prevents
communities from evaluating other EMS system quality
measures that demonstrate system effectiveness for patient
care, experience, and outcomes.

This joint statement encourages EMS systems and com-
munity leaders to implement an approach to EMS system
performance that prioritizes patient-centered care and uses a
broad, balanced set of clinical, safety, experiential, equity,
operational, and financial measures to evaluate the effective-
ness of EMS systems.

This statement is endorsed by the Academy of Inter-
national Mobile Healthcare Integration, American Ambulance
Association, American College of Emergency Physicians,
American College of Surgeons Committee on Trauma,
American Paramedic Association, International Academies of
Emergency Dispatch, International Association of EMS
Chiefs, International City/County Management Association,

National Association of EMS Physicians, National Association
of Emergency Medical Technicians, National Association of
State EMS Officials, National EMS Management Association,
National EMS Quality Alliance, National Volunteer Fire
Council and Paramedic Chiefs of Canada. These associations
recommend that local communities and governments mod-
ernize the assessment of the performance of their EMS sys-
tems/agencies by evaluating a broad array of domains with
key performance indicators (KPIs) that can be measured and
trended over time, and whenever possible, benchmarked with
comparable EMS systems, or other national data, and pub-
lished to local community stakeholders on a regular basis.
The domains that communities should consider when evalu-
ating an EMS system/agency are:

o Effective: Is the health care provided clinically appropri-
ate and high quality?

e Safe: Are services being provided in a way that is clinic-
ally and operationally safe for patients, responders, and
the community?

o Satisfying: How do patients and EMS clinicians feel about
the service being provided?

e Equitable: Is the system providing care that is equitable
based on patient demographics and service area geography?

o Efficient: Is this service being provided in a way that
maximizes the of economic

use and operational

resources?

CONTACT Douglas F. Kupas @ dkupas@geisinger.edu
© 2024 National Association of EMS Physicians


http://crossmark.crossref.org/dialog/?doi=10.1080/10903127.2024.2375739&domain=pdf&date_stamp=2024-10-17
http://orcid.org/0000-0002-2183-4018
http://orcid.org/0000-0003-4223-0296
http://orcid.org/0000-0002-4116-0575
http://orcid.org/0000-0001-8253-8477
http://orcid.org/0000-0002-0711-5746
http://orcid.org/0000-0003-4961-8429
http://orcid.org/0000-0001-6348-1639
http://orcid.org/0000-0002-1435-5115
http://orcid.org/0009-0000-6850-385X
http://www.tandfonline.com
https://doi.org/10.1080/10903127.2024.2375739

PREHOSPITAL EMERGENCY CARE . 1069

Whenever feasible, evidence-based performance meas- Disclosure Statement
ures should be used that are associated with improved
patient outcomes and system performance. Resources are
cited in the attached table that can help to guide
selection.

It is also essential for government and community leaders  Douglas F. Kupas (5) http://orcid.org/0000-0002-2183-4018
and decision-makers to consider all elements of the EMS Matt Zavadsky (&) http:/orcid.org/0000-0003-4223-0296

. Brooke Burton ((s) http://orcid.org/0000-0002-4116-0575
system from the moment a 9-1-1 call is made to the conclu Robert Dunne () http://orcid.org/0000-0001-8253-8477

sion of care by the EMS system/agency. Richard Ferron () http://orcid.org/0000-0002-0711-5746
Innovative programs such as mobile integrated health-  Daniel Gerard () http://orcid.org/0000-0003-4961-8429

care/community paramedicine, alternative response mod- Joseph Grover () http://orcid.org/0000-0001-6348-1639
els and response dispositions to enable a broader array Jetfrey Jarvis ([9) http://orcid.org/0000-0002-1435-5115
. . " George W. Solomon ([5) http://orcid.org/0009-0000-6850-385X
of services to patients and communities should be
considered.
By considering these additional performance measures, Reference

local communities can gain a more comprehensive under- LM B Kue R Th ; lichts and. si b

. . . . urray b, ue . € use oI emergency lighnts and siréns Dy
standlng of the effectiveness of their EMS SYStem/agency’ ambulances and their effect on patient outcomes and public

identify areas for improvement in patient care, system effi- safety: a comprehensive review of the literature. Prehosp Disaster
ciency, and overall emergency response capabilities. Med. 2017;32(2):209-216.

No potential conflict of interest was reported by the author(s).

ORCID

Examples of EMS system performance domains and potential measures for consideration.

Domain Potential Type of Measure for Consideration Source/Benchmark
Clinical e Out-of-Hospital Cardiac Arrest Internal agency data trended over time.
e STEMI Benchmarked to comparable EMS systems/agencies.
e Stroke National EMS Quality Alliance (NEMSQA) published measures.
e Trauma NEMSIS Public Dashboards.
e Hypoglycemia Cardiac Arrest Registry to Enhance Survival (CARES)
e Asthma/COPD AHA Mission Lifeline
e Seizures/Status Epilepticus Other state, regional, provincial, or other community clinical indicators
e Invasive Airway Management
e Special Mental Health Crisis Management
Safety e % of responses and transports using lights and Internal agency data trended over time.
siren (L&S). Benchmarked to comparable EMS systems/agencies.
e Crash rate/100,000 miles. National EMS Quality Alliance (NEMSQA) published measures.
e Job-related injuries/100,000 h worked. NEMSIS Public Dashboards.
e Job-related illness/100,000 h worked.
o Reviews of all dispatch priority assignments.
e EMS recall rate after a non-transport response.
Operational e The number of produced unit hours compared Internal agency data trended over time.
to scheduled unit hours. Benchmarked to comparable EMS systems/agencies.
e Mission failure rate/100,000 miles.
e Response time, for high acuity clinical
responses, measured from the time the call is
placed to a communication center, to the time
of patient contact.
e QA assessments to insure reliability of
prioritization of responses.
Experiential e Patient experience surveys Validated, externally conducted patient and provider experience surveys, such as:
e Hospital experience surveys e EMS Survey Team
e First Response Organization (FRO) experience e Malcolm Baldrige
surveys e Press Ganey
e Personnel engagement surveys Alternatively, internal surveys could be conducted by the agency or local jurisdiction.
e Employee turnover/retention
e Emergency dispatcher engagement surveys
Financial EMS system costs and revenues, reported per: Internal agency data trended over time.
o Staffed Unit Hour Benchmarked to the Academy of International Mobile Healthcare Integration (AIMHI)
e Response survey of EMS systems, or other national data sources.
e Patient Contact
e Transport
e Dispatch staffing deficits vs. fully staffed
periods.

*These examples are not meant to be all-inclusive; communities should establish patient-centric and evidence-based performance measures based on value to
their local stakeholders.



NORTHERN AGENDA PACKET NO. Item 10

Public Health

Serving Reno, Sparks & Washoe County

Staff Report
Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board
Board Meeting Date: November 6, 2025

DATE: October 29, 2025
TO: Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board
FROM: Andrea Esp, Preparedness and EMS Oversight Program Manager

775-326-6042, aesp@nnph.org

SUBJECT:  Discussion and Possible Action to Rescind the August 7, 2025 EMSAB Approval to
Establish a Workgroup to Explore Development of an EMS Licensure and Permitting
Program in Coordination with Northern Nevada Public Health (NNPH), Pursuant to
Assembly Bill 102 (2025), Including the Identification of Entities to be Represented
on the Workgroup. (For possible action)

SUMMARY

At the time of the August 7, 2025, EMS Advisory Board (EMSAB) meeting, the EMS Oversight Program and
Board members believed that the EMSAB had authority to develop a workgroup. Following recent inquiries
regarding the structure and operation of the proposed workgroup, a more detailed review of the legal authority
was conducted. This review identified two key issues with the prior EMSAB approval.

First, under NRS 241.015(5), any subcommittee or working group authorized by a public body to make
recommendations that could lead to action by that body is itself considered a public body and must comply with

the OML. Given the informal and operational nature of the proposed workgroup, OML compliance would not
be feasible.

Second, the Interlocal Agreement (ILA) for EMS Oversight assigns authority to establish working groups to
the Health District, not to the EMSAB. Specifically, Article 4, Section 4.1(b) provides that the participating
jurisdictions (Reno, Sparks, Washoe County, and TMFPD) shall participate in working groups established by
the Health District for EMS coordination, evaluation, and improvement activities, which may include
exploration of an EMS licensure and permitting program.

Based on these findings, the prior EMSAB action from August 7, 2025, authorizing the workgroup must be
rescinded.

Following that action, a new item may be brought forward to the EMSAB directing the District Health Officer
(DHO) to establish a workgroup under the authority of the Health District, consistent with Article 4, Section
4.1(b) of the ILA. The workgroup would explore the development of an EMS licensure and permitting program
in coordination with Northern Nevada Public Health (NNPH) and its EMS Oversight Program, pursuant to
Assembly Bill 102 (2025). The DHO and EMS Oversight Program would then report the workgroup’s
assessment to the EMSAB for consideration and potential recommendation to the District Board of Health.

PREVIOUS ACTION



mailto:aesp@nnph.org

Subject: Discussion and Possible Action to Rescind the August 7, 2025 EMSAB Approval to Establish a rkero
to Explore Development of an EMS Licensure and Permitting Program in Coordination with Northern New H
Health (NNPH), Pursuant to Assembly Bill 102 (2025), Including the Identification of Entities to be Repres off the
Workgroup.

Date: November 6, 2025

Page: 2 of 2

On August 7, 2025, EMSAB vote to approve to establish a Workgroup to Explore Development of an EMS
Licensure and Permitting Program in Coordination with Northern Nevada Public Health (NNPH), Pursuant to
Assembly Bill 102 (2025), Which Authorizes District Boards of Health in Counties with Populations of 100,000
or More to Establish, Manage, and Coordinate Local Oversight of EMS in Mid-Sized Counties, Including
Washoe County; the Board May Also Identify Entities to Be Represented on the Workgroup. The Workgroup
Shall Include, at a Minimum, Invitations to Participate Extended to:

¢ One or more consumer representatives
e EMS agencies currently licensed to operate in Washoe County

¢ One representative from each jurisdiction within Washoe County (i.e., City of Reno, City of Sparks,
and Washoe County)

Participation in the Workgroup is Voluntary; Identified Entities Shall Be Invited but Not Required to Participate.
As stated in the Summary, the approval must be rescinded.

BACKGROUND

Not applicable.
FISCAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends rescinding the August 7, 2025 EMSAB Approval to Establish a Workgroup to Explore
Development of an EMS Licensure and Permitting Program in Coordination with Northern Nevada Public
Health (NNPH), Pursuant to Assembly Bill 102 (2025), Including the Identification of Entities to be
Represented on the Workgroup.

POSSIBLE MOTION

Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be “Move to accept to rescind
the August 7, 2025 EMSAB Approval to Establish a Workgroup to Explore Development of an EMS Licensure
and Permitting Program in Coordination with Northern Nevada Public Health (NNPH), Pursuant to Assembly
Bill 102 (2025), Including the Identification of Entities to be Represented on the Workgroup.”

ATTACHMENTS

Not applicable.



NORTHERN AGENDA PACKET NO. ltem 11

Public Health

Serving Reno, Sparks & Washoe County

Staff Report
Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board
Board Meeting Date: November 6, 2025

DATE: October 29, 2025
TO: Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board
FROM: Andrea Esp, Preparedness and EMS Oversight Program Manager

775-326-6042, aesp@nnph.org

SUBJECT:  Discussion and Possible Action to Direct the District Health Officer to Form a
Workgroup Pursuant to the Interlocal Agreement (ILA) for EMS Oversight, Article
4, Section 4.1(b), to Explore the Development of an EMS Licensure and Permitting
Program in Coordination with Northern Nevada Public Health (NNPH) and its EMS
Oversight Program, Pursuant to Assembly Bill 102 (2025). (For possible action)

SUMMARY

Assembly Bill 102, passed during the 2025 Nevada Legislative Session, grants authority to district boards of
health in counties with populations between 100,000 and 700,000—such as Washoe County—to assume
regulatory oversight of emergency medical services (EMS), similar to the authority currently exercised by
Southern Nevada Health District. The legislation provides an opportunity for local health authorities to enhance
EMS coordination, improve system performance, and integrate EMS more fully into public health.

This agenda item proposes that the Board direct the District Health Officer to form of a time-limited, multi-
disciplinary workgroup to assess the feasibility and implications of NNPH exercising this authority. The
workgroup would review statutory requirements, identify potential operational and financial needs, engage
relevant stakeholders, and develop recommendations for the Board on whether and how a local EMS regulatory
program could be implemented.

PREVIOUS ACTION

On August 7, 2025, EMSAB vote to approve to establish a Workgroup to Explore Development of an EMS
Licensure and Permitting Program in Coordination with Northern Nevada Public Health (NNPH), Pursuant to
Assembly Bill 102 (2025), Which Authorizes District Boards of Health in Counties with Populations of 100,000
or More to Establish, Manage, and Coordinate Local Oversight of EMS in Mid-Sized Counties, Including
Washoe County; the Board May Also Identify Entities to Be Represented on the Workgroup. The Workgroup
Shall Include, at a Minimum, Invitations to Participate Extended to:

e One or more consumer representatives
e EMS agencies currently licensed to operate in Washoe County

¢ One representative from each jurisdiction within Washoe County (i.e., City of Reno, City of Sparks,
and Washoe County)

Participation in the Workgroup is Voluntary; Identified Entities Shall Be Invited but Not Required to Participate.


mailto:aesp@nnph.org

Interlocal Agreement (ILA) for EMS Oversight, Article 4, Section 4.1(b), to Explore the Development of ai
Licensure and Permitting Program in Coordination with Northern Nevada Public Health (NNPH) and its EMS
Oversight Program, Pursuant to Assembly Bill 102 (2025).

Date: November 6, 2025

Page: 2 of 2

Subject: Discussion and Possible Action to Direct the District Health Officer to Form a Workgroup Pursuaw“ﬁ5
?H

On November 6, 2025, program staff requested the Board rescin the motion on August 7, 2025 to establish a
Workgroup to Explore Development of an EMS Licensure and Permitting Program in Coordination with
Northern Nevada Public Health (NNPH), Pursuant to Assembly Bill 102 (2025), Which Authorizes District
Boards of Health in Counties with Populations of 100,000 or More to Establish, Manage, and Coordinate Local
Oversight of EMS in Mid-Sized Counties, Including Washoe County; the Board May Also Identify Entities to
Be Represented on the Workgroup. The Workgroup Shall Include, at a Minimum, Invitations to Participate
Extended to:

e One or more consumer representatives
e EMS agencies currently licensed to operate in Washoe County

e One representative from each jurisdiction within Washoe County (i.e., City of Reno, City of Sparks,
and Washoe County)

Participation in the Workgroup is Voluntary; Identified Entities Shall Be Invited but Not Required to Participate.
BACKGROUND

As noted in the summary, Assembly Bill 102 (2025) authorizes district boards of health in counties such as
Washoe to assume EMS oversight responsibilities. This legislative development provides the foundation for
exploring local implementation options.

FISCAL IMPACT
There is no fiscal impact.
RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends to direct the District Health Officer to Form a Workgroup Pursuant to the Interlocal
Agreement (ILA) for EMS Oversight, Article 4, Section 4.1(b), to Explore the Development of an EMS
Licensure and Permitting Program in Coordination with Northern Nevada Public Health (NNPH) and its EMS
Oversight Program, Pursuant to Assembly Bill 102 (2025).

POSSIBLE MOTION

Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be “Move to accept to direct the
District Health Officer to Form a Workgroup Pursuant to the Interlocal Agreement (ILA) for EMS Oversight,
Article 4, Section 4.1(b), to Explore the Development of an EMS Licensure and Permitting Program in
Coordination with Northern Nevada Public Health (NNPH) and its EMS Oversight Program, Pursuant to
Assembly Bill 102 (2025).”

ATTACHMENTS
Not applicable.






mailto:ckingsley@nnph.org




REMSA
HEALTH.

=D
——
——
—
—
————
——
—
———

QUARTERLY FRANCHISE DATA REPORTING

MUTUAL AID

To comply with section 12.2 (a) of the REMSA Franchise Agreement Amended August 25, 2022.

Number of incidents when a co-response partner is requested for mutual aid within the REMSA

Health service area.

REMSA Health Mutual Aid

Quarterly Report

Mutual Aid Requests Agency Used
Date Range Carson City | Reno | Sparks | Truckee Meadows | Total | % of Overall REMSA Health Responses
July 2025 - September 2025 0 6 1 3 10 0.04%
Mutual Aid Requests .
Year/Month |.7| Reno | Sparks [ Truckee Meadows | Total

2025
Jul 1

Aug 5 1

Sep 2

Total 6 1 3 10




0
——
——
—
——_———
— ]
——
—
——

REMSA
HEALTH.

TIERED RESPONSE REPORTING

To comply with section 12.2 (b) of the REMSA Franchise Agreement Amended on August 25,

2022.

CALL PROCESSING

Call received by REMSA Health’s Regional Emergency Communications Center (RECC) to final

EMD determinate.

P1 P2 P3 Grand Total
Jul 2025 02:22 02:21 02:22 02:22
Aug 2025 02:20 02:24 02:19 02:21
Sep 2025 02:27 02:29 02:28 02:28
Quarterly Summary 02:23 02:25 02:23

SYSTEM ILS RESPONSES & NUMBER OF ILS RESPONSES AND TRANSPORTS TO

ILS DETERMINATES
Total ILS Total ILS ILS Responses to ILS | ILS Transports to ILS
Response Transports Determinants Determinants
Jul 2025 1,372 1,063 1,240 947
Aug 2025 1,284 947 1,177 864
Sep 2025 1,435 1,073 1,293 955
Grand Total 4,091 3,083 3,710 2,766




)
——
——
—
—————
—_—
—~—
—
——

REMSA
HEALTH.

*Total ILS responses includes ILS co-response with an ALS unit, interfacility, and ILS

determinate responses.

NUMBER OF ILS RESPONSES UPGRADED TO ALS

The number of ILS eligible calls and responses that, once an ILS unit arrived on scene an ALS
unit was requested to respond to provide care and transport.

Month ILS Responses ALS Intercepts 2001 ILISn(t:eiliZ;:ith ALS
Jul 2025 641 23 36%
Aug 2025 579 31 5.49%

Sep 2025 721 45 6.29%

AVERAGE ILS RESPONSE TIME BY ZONE

The response time target for low acuity, non-emergent ILS calls shall be less than 19:59 for Zone
A, 24:59 Zone B, 29:59 Zone C, 39:59 Zone D, & ASAP for Zone E.

Average Response Time

Average Response Time

Zone A Zone BCD
Jul 2025 11:42 21:40
Aug 2025 12:03 18:22
Sep 2025 12:25 24:06
Average 12:04 22:24




——
——
——
—_——
——_———
— ]
——
—
——

REMSA
HEALTH.

AVERAGE ON SCENE TIME FOR ILS

Avg ILS Scene Time
Jul 2025 24:28
Aug 2025 22:52
Sep 2025 23:22
Average 23:22

NUMBER OF CALLS REQUIRING FIRE RIDERS ON AN ILS TRANSPORT

Month Number OF I.LS.Calls Requiring Fire Percentage of Responses
to Ride into Hospital
Jul 2025 0 0%
Aug 2025 1 0.02%
Sep 2025 1 0.03%

NUMBER OF ILS UNITS PERCENTAGE BASED ON DAILY STAFFING

Sunday Monday | Tuesday | Wednesday | Thursday | Friday | Saturday
ALS 38 45 43 41 423 42 41
ILS 14 17 18 18 17 18 15
Percent 44.7% 37.7% 41.8% 43.9% 40.4% 42.8% 36.5%




-
——
——
—
—_——
—_—
——
—
——

REMSA
HEALTH.

EMS OPERATIONS UPDATE

During the third quarter of 2025, EMS Ground Operations saw continued growth and operational
enhancements. A total of 29 new field providers were hired, including 6 Paramedics, 5 AEMTs,
and 18 EMTs, strengthening our field response capabilities.

We expanded our fleet with the delivery of 2 new ambulances and 2 new support vehicles,
supporting both daily operations and special response readiness.

Staffing remained consistent with 65 ALS shift lines and 19 ILS shift lines actively filled, ensuring
reliable service coverage across the system.

Anthony Cabral was promoted to EMS Administrative Supervisor, recognizing his leadership and
contributions to the department.

Special Events kept us busy during these summer months. The Special Events Division
successfully staffed nearly 400 Special Event shifts, highlighting our operational flexibility and
community engagement.



REMSA
HEALTH.

PUBLIC RELATIONS UPDATES

——
——
——
—
—
————
——
—
———

Media Relations Caring for Your Community

Education Director Jenny et CARE

W. prrovided media ; 8,372

interviews to KTVN and . _I

KOLO about the high s INNOVATION
temperatures in July and N 000w
how to recognize, prevent mags 0.0% b

and treat the symptoms of T
heat-related illness. *H i

REMSA provides tips for handling the heat

V| e | =
Regondl ‘
ENIC)

uthort) ] >
\ LY SPECIAL EVENTS SHIFTS
. [ s
o, HANDLING THE HEAT
o REMSA PROVIDES HEAT SpFEIV TIPS .
14— | 3
860

84

18- CAR SEATS PROPERL
e INSTALLED
o e

EFD CALLS FOR TRUCKEE MEADOWS
FIRE PROTECTION DISTRI(

Wi COMMUNITY

i‘é’f_;_ggas. URGENCY

REMSA provides safety tips for high heat

fxmoen
RESPONSES
-

searcH AND rescue [T r

. B TACTICAL EMERGENCY 4
@ " MEDICAL SERVICES RESPONSES
A

Pt ge—

DISPATCH-ASSISTED 1
BIRTHS

Emergency Prepardness

REMSA Health participated in
the community’s emergency
response to the active
shooter incident at GSR on
July 28. EMS Director, Todd K.
provided the EMS report
during the joint press event.




=D
——
——
—
—
————
——
—
———

REMSA
HEALTH.

Welcome!

REMSA Health welcomed Sean Slamon as our
new Emergency Manager. Sean has more than
three decades of experience in emergency
management, fire service operations, and
cross-agency collaboration. In this role, he will
lead disaster planning, response coordination,
and training initiatives - supporting REMSA
Health’s mission to strengthen public health,
safety, and preparedness across our region.

Community Relations

REMSA Health welcomed a group of
v students from the Boys and Girls Club as a
fieldtrip during their summer program.

Center for Integrated Health and Community Education

The August 2024 Paramedic

Cohort recognized 14 students REMSA Helth famedic Cradusrion
who successfully completed the :
organization’s 12-month program
which includes mastering
advanced assessment techniques,
complex emergency procedures
and effective patient interactions.

RENMDA ricas

Aug



=D
——
——
—
—
————
——
—
———

REMSA
HEALTH.

In Memoriam!

REMSA Health and Care Flight employees participated in a portion of
theNational EMS Memorial Bike Ride which launched it’s west coast
segment from REMSA Health.

Joseph Drago has joined the organization as executive
director of Care Flight. Joe brings more than two decades
of air medical operations, clinical leadership and strategic
development.

In this role, Joe will oversee all components of the Care
Flight division, including clinical performance, patient and
crew safety, customer service, business development,
transport operations, regulatory tracking and team
member development.

Integrated Health in Washoe County

Congratulations to REMSA Health’s first
state-endorsed Community AEMTSs.
They will have an integral role in the
organization’s approach to caring for
underserved and complex patients.













money from REMSA. These kits are a critical addition to our emergency response capabilities, giving our
crews the ability to rapidly treat cyanide poisoning in fire and smoke inhalation victims. Having these
resources on our fire engines and ambulances enhances our ability to provide immediate, life saving
interventions in the field and further strengthens our regional preparedness for toxic cyanide exposures.






	11062025_emsab_agenda_packet
	Agenda - EMSAB
	Item 3-A. Draft Minutes 8/7/25
	Item 4. Discussion & Acknowledgment of Resignation-Joe Macaluso, CQI Representative
	Item 4-A. Position Resignation-Joe Macaluso
	Item 5. Proclamation-Crash Responder Safety Week
	Item 6. Presentation, discussion, & possible approval of Washoe County EMS Oversight ProgramFY25 Annual Report
	Item 6-A. EMS Oversight Program FY25 Annual Report Final
	Item 7. EMS Oversight Program and Performance Data Updates
	Item 7-A. Program Report PowerPoint
	Washoe County EMS Regional Performance Metrics
	Washoe County EMS Regional Performance Metrics
	National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standards 
	NFPA standards

Criteria: Emergent Calls, First Arriving Unit, ALS Unit, Medical Unit, Engine. 

27% of high priority calls had turnout time less than or equal to 60 seconds

35% of high priority calls had travel time less than or equal to 4 minutes
	NFPA standards

Criteria: Emergent Calls, First Arriving Unit, ALS Unit, Medical Unit, Engine. 

24% of high priority calls had unit response time less than or equal to 5 minutes.

Median total response time for high priority calls from PSAP to arrival is 8 minutes and 12 seconds (No NFPA standards)

	Item 8. Regional CAD Update Report
	Item 8-A. Hexagon Update
	Item 9. Recommendations from the NAEMSP
	Item 9-A. EMSAB- 11-6-2025 - Joint Position Statement on EMS Performance Measures Beyond Response Times.pdf
	Item 10. Discussion & Possible Action to Rescind AB102 Workgroup
	Item 11. Discussion & Possible Action to Direct DHO to Form a Workgroup Pursuant to ILA 
	Item 12. Update on Amended & Restated Franchise Agreement for Ambulance Service
	Item 13-A. REMSA Health EMSAB Report FY26 Q1
	Item 13-B. City of Sparks Fire Department Staff Report FY26 Q1
	Item 13-C. Truckee Meadows Fire & Rescue Staff Report FY26 Q1
	Item 13-D. City of Reno Fire Department Staff Report FY26 Q1




